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| VISION &=

To become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in the
acoustics and electronics industries.

RAEERBREFRUARF BENRBIESIERH -

MISSION fE &y
I

Through advancements in innovative technologies, we strive to

provide value-added and distinct products to our customers.

AT RBIFRI - B ABEPRESIEE SEREMNEM -

| VALUES E{E &

We, as a partner, abide by our commitment to our customers.

We, as an innovator, relentlessly pursue excellence.

We, as a team, cross the finish line together.

We, as a corporate citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity
of our society.
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Financial Highlights

For the year ended 31 March Z3A31H L EE

2021 2020 Change %1t
Operating results RS
Gross profit margin (%) FE =& (%) 19.4 19.4 -
Operating profit margin (%) A5 ) B 2R (%) 33 52 -19pts B0
Net profit margin (%) 4 2R (%) 1.2 23 ipts OB
Return on equity holders (%) HEmiEE ADHRE(%) 1.6 45 -29pts ADE
Financial position B R AR
Total assets (HK$'000) BEE(TET) 929,373 948,472 -2.0%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) Re RBTFER(FART) 487,350 421,768 15.5%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) MR (T L) 661,083 650,252 1.7%
Financial ratio B b =&
Current ratio (Times) mENEEE (%) 4.0 3.5 14.3%
Quick ratio (Times) RENELFE(fF) 3.3 2.7 22.2%
Turnover ratio B
Inventory turnover (days) FEEH(R) 80 88 -9.1%
Trade receivables turnover (days) FEWEREE(H) 61 62 -1.6%
Trade payables turnover (days) FERTBRAEE(H) 83 90 -7.8%
Operating cycle (days) “LEREE(H) 58 60 -3.3%
Dividends per share (HK cents) FRERE GEWL) 5.0 5.0 =
Interim Fh Hf 2.0 2.0 -
Final K E 3.0 3.0 -
Revenue Yt A Shareholders’ equity & R €25 Dividends per share 2R &

HK$ million B&8 7T
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1500 1,412
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Financial Summary

MEERE

UTRELSERERARRAR(TARR]) REKE
RAZFATEARBRMGEPHRARIIRE ¢

The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income SEZHKER
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue LN 890,820 1,250,173 1,411,795 1,226,121 1,155,334
Cost of sales $HE A (717,784) (1,007,807) (1,154,092) (978,377) (968,815)
Gross profit EH 173,036 242,366 257,703 247,744 186,519
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib(Es18), /Uas
— 35 (16,188) 1,433 8,046 (15,973) 12,465
Distribution and selling expenses DHREETH (8,080) (9,789) (14,293) (12,903) (14,718)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1T ST (124,252) (163,735) (166,569) (154,662) (153,286)
Reversal of provision/(provision) for  JE Uk & Fm (B B &
impairment of trade receivables [l (BE#) 5,193 (5,067) (871) 2,105 (2,064)
Operating profit IR SE R 29,709 65,208 84,016 66,311 28,916
Finance income — net BEW A —F5E 3,337 4,720 4,572 3,278 2,193
Profit before income tax bR AT 15 15 Bl 33,046 69,928 88,588 69,589 31,109
Income tax expenses FRS iz 1 (12,660) (18,047) (19,620) (15,310) (6,808)
Profit for the year FE R 20,386 51,881 68,968 54,279 24,301
Attributable to: BB ¢
Equity holders of the Company KNARIIKHEEIF A A 10,266 28,991 40,490 30,518 2,770
Non-controlling interests FEIEH M RE RS 10,120 22,890 28,478 23,761 21,531
20,386 51,881 68,968 54,279 24,301
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Financial Summary
HBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SEMBRRR
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KREE 97,861 113,119 142,442 137,898 130,381
Investment properties WEME 1,500 1,500 1,400 1,200 1,050
Right-of-use assets CHRREEE 27,079 24,419 = - -
Land use rights sk A = = 3,879 4,316 4,047
Non-current deposits and other EmBi e REM
assets BE 2,085 2,417 4,812 2,758 3,713
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMKEE - - - 3,928 4,116
Financial assets at fair value BAFERAEM
through other comprehensive 2 [ W a5 B 75
income BE 4,208 4,063 3,979 - -
Deferred income tax assets EEFTERMEE 7,684 8,543 6,644 5,836 4,786
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 140,417 154,061 163,156 155,936 148,093
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 141,090 172,582 313,876 237,111 158,697
Trade receivables FE W& 129,700 168,276 258,226 228,332 214,005
Other receivables Hfth pE U Zh 18 23,028 30,021 39,149 30,005 24,444
Financial assets at fair value BAFEGABZE
through profit or loss RS EE 1,423 1,448 2,109 2,145 2,938
Current income tax recoverable Al Ye Bl S EAFR 5 F5 6,365 316 1,003 61 710
Cash and cash equivalents ReENEEEEY 487,350 421,768 263,137 408,633 455,945
Total current assets mENEEBE 788,956 794,411 877,500 906,287 856,739
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables e &R 94,808 108,809 173,121 205,668 194,740
Contract liabilities, accruals and ABHEaE ETEH
other payables K H At pE A~ FhoE 84,967 106,429 125,690 100,078 78,931
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,511 6,880 = = =
Derivative financial instruments PTESHMTA - - - - 3,870
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 11,232 4,714 4,805 10,044 14,210
Total current liabilities mEBaEEE 197,518 226,832 303,616 315,790 291,751
_Netcurrentassets REEEFE 591,438 567,579 573,884 590,497 564,988
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAR 731,855 721,640 737,040 746,433 713,081
Non-current liabilities FERHAaE
Lease liabilities HEBE 7,177 3,940 = = =
Deferred income tax liabilities EILAEHMEE 891 1,825 2,184 1,491 700
_Total non-current liabilities FEnBAMERE 8068 5765 . 2184 1491 700
Net assets BEFE 723,787 715,875 734,856 744,942 712,381

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 4 Annual Report 2020/2021



Financial Summary

HEIEE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continved) #4REBMERRER 2)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to  EREBAR AIERAG A
the Company’s equity holders IR R
Share capital [N 42,584 42,584 42,584 42,107 42,026
Other reserves H & 169,407 151,280 171,771 191,739 156,810
Retained earnings REB = F
— Proposed dividends —BEERE 12,775 12,775 21,292 21,053 29,418
— Others —Hfb 436,317 443,613 437,446 435,221 436,522
661,083 650,252 673,093 690,120 664,776
Non-controlling interests FEPE 1 M = 62,704 65,623 61,763 54,822 47,605
Total equity BERAE 723,787 715,875 734,856 744,942 712,381
£ 20202021 O E+rBEEZRARAT



Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

To our shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present the
annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries ("“Fujikon” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the
“Review Year").

Over the past year, the global economy continued to be in the doldrums,
the result of COVID-19 (the “Pandemic”) which caused lockdowns around
the world and Sino-US trade tensions that remained unresolved. Moreover,
a "new normal” has emerged, characterised by working from home, upsurge
in e-commerce, and increase in online social activities such as gaming,
casual web gatherings, etc. These developments consequently influenced our
operations both positively and adversely.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 6

Johnny Yeung x5 &
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

FERITHBE

BEURR

FAEREZEFE(EFEDMAREETLIRERE
BRERZR(TARF D REMBRARITELS IRIA
SEDEBEZ2NFIANBLFE(OBEFEDZF

BE—F 0 COVID-19 ([RKIE 1) EE B IR S h SRERE
it RPXESFRBENTET 2REERE
Bk o BEoh - RAEEEIHER] BRERBER - €
PRI E R E AR LR MEREEER
RITHE - L BBHAREXGLEXENE2Y -
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In the face of a constantly changing business environment, we have adhered
to our strategies to design and manufacture sophisticated and customised
products that address market demands. Such adherence can be traced back
to our inception, when efforts were directed to technological advancement
and the introduction of new products that could enable Fujikon to overcome
adversity and create room for growth. In overcoming one adversity after
another, we became better equipped with the expertise, experience and
means to strengthen our market position, while at the same time be in the
vanguard of change — invaluable advantages for differentiating Fujikon from
other industry players.

Now with nearly four decades of experience under our belt, we have
leveraged these same advantages to introduce products that heed the latest
market demands and consumer trends. Case in point is our Call Centre &
Office ("CC&O0") products, which include audio and video conferencing
related products that have enjoyed a significant uptake in the wake of
the Pandemic. The strong performance aligns with a report published
by TechNavio which has projected the global office and contact centre
headsets market will achieve a CAGR of over 13% for the 2020-2024 period,
and at an incremental growth of USD1.33 billion. Given that this segment
calls for software and hardware integration and the need to meet various
certifications, thus presenting a high entry barrier, all of these requisites play
to Fujikon’s strengths. With our engineering, technical and manufacturing
prowess, we are able to meet the stringent requirements demanded.
Moreover, our expertise in delivering customised electro-acoustic solutions
featuring technologies such as True Wireless and Active Noise-Cancellation
("ANC") further ensures our capacity to bring premium CC&O products to
market. As Fujikon's top-tier customer base includes leaders from the CC&O0
product market, this places it in a decided advantage when cross-selling
opportunities arise.

Even though vaccination programmes have commenced in major economies
around the world, an end to the Pandemic crisis is far from assured.
Moreover, trade tensions between China and the United States have yet to
ease, hence the outlook for the global economy remains unclear. This lack
of clarity will invariably affect consumer sentiment, which in turn means
that our customers will continue adhering to a conservative approach when
placing orders. On the supply side, the aforementioned Pandemic and trade
tensions have already resulted in a global shortage of integrated circuit
chips, which possibly introduces disruptions to the Group’s supply chain.
We therefore hold reservations about the business outlook in the immediate
future and will be extra vigilant; taking the necessary steps to remain
resilient amid changing market conditions.

! "Global Office and Contact Center Headsets Market 2020-2024" by TechNavio
https://www.technavio.com/report/office-and-contact-center-headsets-market-
industry-analysis

£4§ 20202021/

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

HHEMZENERRE  RMBHRERTRRE -
RETEERAEHER - mETRAMSERR - REE
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BT F R ELR  REUMISNRATHE
TEHHLAFER DATMBEEFERREESBE -
BOITME - AREERE PO REAE(
FLERAE]ER(REEARGASEAMER)
HESK R K o EHTechNavio$ KM IRE—8 » £ 7E
20205 Z=20244F BRI 2 BRI A E R B AR 0 A &K
EHmISa EREEa13%MFERIERER  25HIER
1,330,000,0003 7T © 5% ¥ 75 @b & ©OHE (4F £01 - WZEEN
B2ERE  FERERTEAAME  TOo%ELE
BH REAIR BRMREEFEMNED  HMA
HRENMBESEREER - o BMFZREE
CEBBATR  ERAEESLTHABRR(EHH
R DERM - AMESRHEEETURLERAEE
Mo BLmMBARRFEETUALEHAETERT
BRHZREELE  BEZEZILEBEROINHEERS
1 o

ERTIZEERCRMAZEEREE  BRLEBEE
ERBERDAKBER - i FXEHFHARLE
R BMEERREENSDTHNA - KEANSTH - 2
BHISSTIHEL  EPABEERETERE - H#/E
TH RIEHERBESEHSIEEHERER T E
B ATREERARBHERER - ERRUIL - RAH
RHERBASHRERE  YHRFRINEG - BEiR
RV RIER - WERSEZNTR TREFRRE -

: TechNavio® & #9[20205F-2024F 2 Bk #f 2 = & & fR
/R0y B ® Bk E % T 35 (Global Office and Contact Center
Headsets Market 2020-2024) ] https://www.technavio.com/
report/office-and-contact-center-headsets-market-industry-
analysis
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Going forward, we will continue putting our efforts in the co-development
of projects as this leads to shared benefits for the Group and relevant
customers; a constantly evolving and advanced product portfolio; and
the strengthening of ties with top-tier brands. Still other measures we
will employ so as to increase cost efficiency will include the introduction
of greater automation and workforce optimisation. By strengthening our
product and client portfolios, improving efficiencies and controlling costs,
along with leveraging the Group's healthy financial position and experienced
management, we will be able to overcome whatever adversities that may
arise and reinforce our position as a preferred partner in the acoustics and
electronics industries.

Dividends

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per ordinary share. Together with an interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per
share already paid, a total payout of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share will be
distributed to shareholders for the Review Year.

Appreciation

| wish to take this opportunity to express my utmost gratitude to our
management team and the entire Fujikon workforce for their dedication
and tireless efforts. | would also like to offer my appreciation to all of the
Group's business partners, shareholders and customers for their unwavering
trust and support, particularly in view of the challenging past year.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 June 2021

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business review

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Review Year"), the Group’s financial
performance was inevitably affected by the struggling global economy due
to the outbreak of COVID-19 (the “Pandemic”). With the constant erosion in
consumer confidence, the Group’s customers have been taking a conservative
approach when placing orders. Consequently, the Group’s total revenue
declined by 28.7% to HK$890.8 million (2020: HK$1,250.2 million). Gross
profit also slipped to HK$173.0 million (2020: HK$242.4 million), while gross
profit margin remained at 19.4% (2020: 19.4%). Despite the drop in gross
profit and the recording of a net exchange loss of HK$20.2 million arising
from the appreciation of Renminbi during the Review Year, which was partly
offset by the write-backs of provision of trade receivables and provision of
inventory obsolescence, the Group recorded a profit attributable to equity
holders of HK$10.3 million (2020: HK$29.0 million). Basic earnings per share
were HK2.4 cents (2020: HK6.8 cents).

Business segment analysis

Headsets and Headphones

The performance of the headsets and headphones business during the Review
Year was in line with that of the six months ended 30 September 2020
(the “Interim Period”), as customers continued to remain highly cautious
about placing new orders with the Group. As a result, segmental revenue
decreased by approximately 29.2% to HK$647.0 million (2020: HK$913.8
million), accounting for 72.6% of the Group's total revenue. Segment profit
was HK$25.5 million (2020: HK$15.9 million).

As mentioned in the Group's Interim Report, Call Centre & Office ("CC&0")
products, which includes audio and video conferencing related products,
have enjoyed a surge in demand, mainly due to the increasing prevalence
of remote working practices as well as the “new normal” style of living in
the wake of the Pandemic. During the Review Year, the Group has allocated
more resources to capture opportunities that have arisen in this segment.
The CC&O product segment places emphasis on software and hardware
integration and possesses high entry barriers, as various certifications and
stringent product testing are required. With nearly 40 years of experience in
the electro-acoustic industry, the Group leveraged its strong fundamentals in
product development, as well as its advanced engineering and manufacturing
capabilities, to expand its offerings in this segment and tap the market
demand.

£4§ 20202021 9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Business segment analysis (Continued)
Accessories and Components

As the Pandemic hampered consumption sentiment worldwide, the
performance of the Group's packaging business for electro-acoustic products
was inevitably affected. This segment recorded revenue of HK$243.9
million (2020: HK$336.4 million), and accounted for 27.4% of the Group's
total revenue. Nevertheless, the business operation remained profitable,
generating HK$25.3 million (2020: HK$52.4 million) in profit for the Review
Year. Moreover, it continues to play an integral role in advancing Fujikon's
vertical integration.

Prospects

While the launch of a number of vaccines in the latter half of the Review
Year should have signalled the beginning of the end for the Pandemic,
the reality was a little less heartening, with further challenges such as
the emergence of new COVID-19 variants continuing to cause concerns
worldwide. Looking ahead to 2021, given the host of uncertainties
surrounding the current Pandemic situation, the Group expects its customers
will continue to adopt a wait-and-see approach in placing orders based on
their diverse views on the pace and magnitude of the market's recovery.
This, coupled with the global shortage of integrated circuit chips, is expected
to create another set of challenges for the Group, as the macroeconomic
environment is set to remain unpredictable and challenging. Fujikon will thus
continue to work tirelessly to refine its operations, so as to be fully prepared
for both challenges and opportunities going forward.

The Group will also continue to dedicate resources to advance its
engineering and manufacturing capabilities, both of which are essential
to its strategy to explore and tap the demand from segments with growth
potential and market value. In the face of the “new normal” brought about
by the Pandemic, the Group expects video and conferencing related products,
as well as those related to gaming, will remain in strong demand in the
short to medium term. In light of this, the Group will direct energies toward
expanding its capacity and enhancing its capabilities in order to offer high-
quality CC&O products to address market needs in an effective manner.
With a well-established customer portfolio covering the world’s top-tier
audio brands, Fujikon's existing customers include the largest CC&0 product
providers in the world. The Group thus enjoys the potential advantage of
cross-selling CC&O products to its customers.

10
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Prospects (Continued)

In addition, the Group will maintain its practice of engaging in co-
development projects that result in mutual advantages, enrichment of its
product portfolio and even stronger relations with top-tier customers. The
Group is also fully aware of the importance of cost efficiency, particularly
amid such adverse market conditions. Consequently, implementing efficient
cost control measures,
resources will be key priorities in the coming year.

increasing automation and optimising human

As a veteran of the electro-acoustic industry, the Group has weathered
numerous ups and downs since its inception. Having proved itself to be
robust and resilient, Fujikon remains committed to its mission of providing
sophisticated and customised products to its customers. The Group will
continue to prevail over adversity and pave its own way to long-term
sustainable growth while generating greater value for its shareholders.

Financial review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately HK$591.4 million (2020:
HK$567.6 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were approximately
4.0 times (2020: 3.5 times) and 3.3 times (2020: 2.7 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$487.4 million
as at 31 March 2021, representing an increase of approximately 15.5%
against approximately HK$421.8 million as at 31 March 2020. Approximately
36.1%, 58.4% and 5.0% of the total cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars respectively,
and the remainders were in other currencies. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had aggregated banking facilities of approximately HK$160.6 million
(2020: HK$160.6 million) for loans and trade financing, with an unused
balance of approximately HK$159.0 million (2020: HK$160.6 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and China with most transactions
settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group is mainly
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate.

During the year, the Group had recorded a net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HK$20.2 million mainly due to the appreciation of Renminbi,
while a net foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$1.7 million was
recorded during the last year.

The recent fluctuation of Renminbi directly affected our operating costs.

The Group will continuously monitor and enter foreign exchange forward
contracts where appropriate.

£4§ 20202021 11
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Financial review (Continued)

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed a total of approximately
2,600 (2020: 3,300) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$269.6 million during the year
(2020: HK$361.7 million).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in
Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in China.
The Group has also developed training programs to its management and
employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2020: HK$155.7 million) to secure banking
facilities of its subsidiaries. The facilities utilised by a subsidiary as at 31
March 2021 were approximately HK$0.8 million (2020: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, M.H., aged 76, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and an executive Director since 2000 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 October 2011.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and
implementation of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected
the Honorary Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In 2014, he was awarded the University Fellow
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, re-elected the Industrial Fellow
of Warwick University, the Medal of Honor (“M. H.") at the Seventeenth
Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR and also awarded the
Honorary Fellowships of Vocational Training Council in 2019. Mr. Yeung has
over 50 years of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and he
was elected the Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong Kong Electronics
Industry Council in April 2018. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Executive
Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong,
the Member of Innovation and Technology Training Board of the Vocational
Training Council, the Council Member of Governing Council of Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, the Honorary President of Hong Kong Wong Tai
Sin Industry and Commerce Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Electronics Industries Association and the Honorary Chairman & the
Vice Chairman of Dongguan Electronics Industries Association, the Deputy
Supervisor and the President of Humen Branch of Dongguan City Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment respectively and also the Trustee of
Bright Future Charitable Foundation. Mr. Yeung is the father of Mr. Yeung
Siu Chung, Ben, an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 79, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and an executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 50 years of experience in the electronics industry and has
in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is the Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr.
Yuen Chi King, Wyman, an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 72, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and an executive Director since 2000.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of related affairs of the
Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004 by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and the Distinguished Service
for Community Building of the Secretary for Home Affairs’ Commendation
Scheme in the year of 2015-2016. He has over 50 years of experience in
the electronics and acoustics industry, especially in production and material
management and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai
Fung, an executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEERERE

Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 46, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for
overseeing the implementation of corporate strategy and the financial
functions of the Group. With effect from 1 April 2020, he was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company and is responsible for company
secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University
of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint
Louis University, United States of America with a Master degree of Finance.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yuen has worked for a few regional financial
securities institutions and was responsible for the provision of corporate
finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen has more than 10 years of experience in
financial securities industry and he is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 45, is an executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon
Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in which he served
in numerous sales and marketing and project management positions for
about 3 years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive Director in
August 2007 and is responsible for overseeing the business development
functions and implementing the corporate strategy of the Group, and
committed to modernise the company’s management system. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Yale University in the
United States of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International
Business from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr.
Yeung has more than 10 years of working experience in an engineering and
marketing capacity. Mr. Yeung was elected 2013 Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong by Federation of Hong Kong Industries and awarded the Most
Valuable CIO by BT Media/CSDN in 2014. In addition, Mr. Yeung is actively
engaged in different non-governmental organisations. He is a Vice President
of Hong Kong Electrical Appliance Industries Association and a member of
the Entrepreneurs’ Organization (EO). He is the son of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny, who is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 57, is an executive Director of the Group. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 August 2007. She is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
She graduated from the University of Missouri-Kansas City, United States of
America with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. She has over 20
years of experience in management, accounting and finance. Ms. Chow is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the Joint Deputy Chairman of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Director

Dr. CHUNG Chi Ping, Roy, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 April
2014,

Dr. Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from City University of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial
Professor by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December
2020. Dr. Chung was awarded a Doctor of Business Administration honoris
causa by the University of Macau and an Honorary Doctor of Science by
the University of Warwick, UK, in 2019, an Honorary Doctor of Business
Administration by the Lingnan University in 2015, an Honorary Doctor of
Business Administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and
an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the University of Newcastle, New South
Wales, Australia in 2006. He was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) and
the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“The Government of the HKSAR") on 30 June 2017
and 1 July 2011 respectively. Dr. Chung was appointed as Justice of Peace by
The Government of the HKSAR on 1 July 2005. He won the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Award in 1997 and was further awarded the Industrialist of the
Year in November 2014.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to July
2013 and has been the Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July
2013. In addition, Dr. Chung is an active member of many social committees
and associations and has served on various HKSAR Government advisory
committees. He was appointed as the Chairman of Vocational Training
Council from January 2018 until December 2019. Dr. Chung is also the
Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation, and whereby
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, executive Director of the Company, is one of
the trustees.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited (stock code: 669), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of TK
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 345), both companies are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Dr. NG Wang Pun, Dennis, aged 70, holds a master degree in materials
engineering from Yanshan University and a doctorate degree in business
administration from City University of Macau (formerly known as Asia
International Open University (Macau). He was awarded a fellowship by
the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong in 2004 and The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2014/2015, and an honorary fellowship
by Vocational Training Council in 2017. Dr. Ng is the Honorary Consul
of the Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China. He was awarded
the Medal of Honor (MH), the Bronze Bauhinia Star Award (BBS) and the
Silver Bauhinia Star Award (SBS) by The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2007, 2013 and 2020 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEERERE

Independent non-executive Director (Continued)

Dr. Ng is the founder of Polaris, an ivory ornaments and jewelry
manufacturer company, and is currently the managing director of Polaris
Arts & Jewelry Limited, a private company that is principally engaged in the
investment and trading of jewelries. He is the Permanent Honorary President
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. Dr. Ng is currently
a member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board, a member of the vetting
committee of the Re-industrialisation Funding Scheme organized by the
Innovation and Technology Commission, a member of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Belt and Road & Greater Bay Area Committee, the
chairman of the Hong Kong Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board and
the chairman of the Jewellery, Watch and Clock Training Board of Vocational
Training Council.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 53, had been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for 4 years since March 2000. On June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Che was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been practicing as
a solicitor in Hong Kong over 20 years and is currently a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 59, has been an independent non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring in
accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller of Magician Industries
(Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy finance director of
Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently the vice president of
finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management

Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 81, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. LAM Man Tai, Vincent, aged 54, is an Executive Vice President of
Operation of Fujikon Industrial Company Limited. He joined the Group in
March 2012.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by segment
information is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report.

A summary of the key performance indicators of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Financial Highlights” on page 2 of this annual report. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the year-end date 31
March 2021.

The business operations and results may be affected by various factors.
The discussion of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report. The
financial risk factors are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of risk management are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” under the paragraph headed “Risk
management and internal control” on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.

In addition, discussions on the environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant local laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of
the Group with its employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 47
to 78 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 87 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share was paid during
the year. The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.0 cents per ordinary share (the “Dividend”), subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual
General Meeting”). The Dividend is expected to be paid on 3 September
2021, to those shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 19 August 2021.

Other reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 19 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Share capital and share options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 March 2021, the Company's reserves of approximately
HK$138,800,000 (subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended)) and retained earnings of approximately
HK$23,690,000 were available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-Laws”) and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.
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Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$101,000.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Retirement schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Ng Wang Pun, Dennis (appointed on 23 June 2021)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (resigned on 23 June 2021)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the Bye-Laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Pursuant to Bye-Law 99, Mr. Yuen Chi King Wyman, Mr. Che Wai Hang Allen
and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun will retire from the office of Directors by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting. Such Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to Bye-Law 102(B),
a director appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment. Dr. Ng Wang
Pun, Dennis was appointed as an independent non-executive Director to fill
the causal vacancy of Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy on 23 June 2021. Therefore,
Dr. Ng will be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All the other Directors will remain in office.

Brief biographical details of the Directors who will be proposed for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 13 to 16.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2021, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

Interests in the Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

EERBEH

EEZMETLEMARAREEMHBRRTER—
FRARIEMBAEHEEOREMERIN ZKREBR
BaK -

BYFHTESZBYM

ARFCERESBIUFNTESTRETEREAIZM
BRARBR(BZMADEBSF TR LEHRADE
BBMRBH CFREB IR K - YRAMABULIE
WITEEHBBILAL -

EERFETBRAEBREAQARHEBER
Az - HEARORES 2 Em

R2021F3H318 - ARAESRFETHAERAEAR
AIREBERAR(EEREBEHFRBERA (BB ENE
SME) ([FHREBEGED ) EXVE) 2 kH - HER
M RESTHER THBELRAREE S &S KHIZE352
BRFE2ERM BB LR ITAZESTETES
RS HZESFA([IZESFA D) BME R R G REBRFT
SN E

RARQT zERH

Number of
underlying Shares
(in respect of
share options)®

(the “Shares") HERAHE (F

sRo10ET . EBR( KRG DHE BREMS)®
Interest of *Approximate
Beneficial Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of
Name of Directors interests of a trust corporations interests Total shareholding
EEfs Bags ERER FRHEEER Bags @i RARRESM
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Bk 11,757,000 - 42,571,500 - 54,328,500 12.76%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 1,000 = 64,571,500% 410,000 64,982,500 15.26%
Chow Man Yan, Michael BxE 8,355,000 o 70,571,500%) = 78,926,500 18.53%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT = = = 4,020,000 4,020,000 0.94%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben HOR 32,020,000 42,571,500 = = 74,591,500 17.52%
Chow Lai Fung [EEE 1,020,000 S = 3,000,000 4,020,000 0.94%

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 425,839,000 Shares) as at 31 March 2021.
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Directors’ and chief executive’'s interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (Continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The 42,571,500 Shares are held by Loyal Fair Group Limited, a private limited
company wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly
owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the
trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the Yeung
Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family
members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

2. The 64,571,500 Shares are held by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, a private
limited company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Asia Supreme Limited, a private limited
company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option schemes
of the Company, details of which are separately disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
March 2021.

Information on share option schemes

The Company adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares. Details of the schemes are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012,
an ordinary resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not already
exercised) granted prior to the termination of the Old Scheme shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Old Scheme. As at 31
March 2021, no options were granted under the New Scheme.

The principal terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive director), any non-executive director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest,
and any other party having contribution to the development of the
Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the New
Scheme and percentage to the issued share capital as at
31 March 2021

41,013,900 Shares (approximately 9.63% of the total issued share
capital as at 31 March 2021).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the New Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.0 on or before the date
of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date of
offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest

of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

¢.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012 (being the date of fulfilment of all
conditions on the adoption of the New Scheme).
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Movements in the share options granted to and held by the Directors under
the Old Scheme during the year were as follows:

Number of underlying Shares

EEBAROHES 2 EF

FRREENS  BTRSTMERE I BRES
mT

RERGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Subscription
Beginning during during during End of price per Date of Exercise period
Name of Directors of the Year the Year the Year the Year the Year Share grant (dd/imm/iyyyy)  Note
EEps £ FaRE  FATE  FRAX ER SRABE RLAH TEB™(B/B/E) W
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 (HKS)
T T T T T ()
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 40 - - - 410 11 283012 280032013 - 27032022 1
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R 2,020 = = = 2,020 1.1 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 - - - 2,000 11 28312012 28/03/2014 - 27103/2022 2
Chow Lai Fung [FIER 1,000 - - - 1,000 11 2832012 2810312013 - 2710312022 1
2,000 - - - 2,000 1.1 28312012 2810312014 - 2710312022 2
Total: it 7430 - - - 7430
Notes: ks

(1) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
(2)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of grant.

(3)  Details of other movement of share options held by employees include employees
of the Company and of its subsidiaries working under employment contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which are regarded as “continuous contracts”
for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding companies was a party and in which any of the Directors or
the Company’s chief executive had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares at 31 March 2021 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary Shares in
issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.
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*Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholder Number of Shares Capacity  Note interest

BRERER A RHBE 5144 ME *BAESA DL

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 64,571,500 Beneficial owner 2 15.16%
EREBA

Asia Supreme Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner 3 16.57%
BEHEAA

Loyal Fair Group Limited 42,571,500 Beneficial owner 4 10.00%
BEHEAA

Golden Hope Financial Limited 42,571,500 Interest of controlled corporation 4 10.00%
AR 2w

Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 4 10.00%
EFERAGRBEFRARRIN)

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 5 10.00%

EREARENEFEARIN)
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and FERFERAATIRGRAAEKRG >R

underlying shares of the Company (Continued) (48)
*Approximate
percentage of
Name of shareholder Number of Shares Capacity Note interest
BRREB MR RHEE 54 M AR BED
Ms. Leung Woon Yee 64,982,500 Interest of spouse 6 15.26%
ZinE R+ Bz #ER
Ms. Cai Liting 78,926,500 Interest of spouse 7 18.53%
g2RELLT Bz R
Ms. Zong Xiao Cui 74,591,500 Interest of spouse 8 17.52%
RNBRL L Bo A 2 #E s
Mr. David Michael Webb 15,169,000 Beneficial owner 3.56%
David Michael Webb 4t 4 EnEA A
Mr. David Michael Webb 27,007,000 Interest of controlled corporation 9 6.34%
David Michael Webb %t 4 REGEE 2 s
Preferable Situation Assets Limited 27,007,000 Beneficial owner 9 6.34%

ERmBEEA

* The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue ~ * BB DL DIRMR20211F3A3TBE EHTRHBE (A
(i.e. 425,839,000 ordinary Shares) as at 31 March 2021. 425,839,0008% & @R )FHH -
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and FERFENAEKATROEEBERAD ZERS

EXARBIR IS R ABRER D 2 R AE AT A o

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited B /R MARLEZE A o

underlying shares of the Company (Continued) (48)

Notes: MEsE -

1. Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares stated above represented long 1.
positions.

2. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon. 2.

3. Asia Supreme Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael. 3.

4. Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, 4.
which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun
Property (PTC) Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then
beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the
objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

5. Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited was the trustee of Yeung Family Trust, a 5.
discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family members of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

6. Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon. 6.
7. Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael. 7.
8. Ms. Zong Xiao Cui is the wife of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. 8.
9. These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire issued 9.

share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had an
aggregate interest in 42,176,000 Shares.

Asia Supreme Limitedf A XA EHA ©

Loyal Fair Group Limited5Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd%
& A - Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltdfl] FiGolden Hope
Financial Limited® & %4 ° Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd &
Yeung Unit TrustZ {S5EA * Yeung Unit Trustf 2 (55T
£ % Yeung Family Trust(E 255 A 15 350 58 £ ORI
B BiEGLIELE)EEHA © Golden Hope Financial
Limited BRI EHE L AT EHAE -

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited &2 #2155 & £ Yeung
Family TrustZ (555 A+ EZmA BB SR L ENREK
B BEBLELEE -

RABLEIRRMAEEZETF -
ERERTRANXCREZET -
RNBELRBIVBREEZETF -

2 % B2 19 HPreferable Situation Assets Limited$& A& @ i
Preferable Situation Assets Limited 2 2 & %577 % 7~ f1 David
Michael Webbst £ % A - R 157 75 I B & 4 - David
Michael Webb%t 4 #% 4% % i Preferable Situation Assets
Limited ¥ /5 2 2 FBA% {7 *h i A # 25 © David Michael Webb
SeAEFE A A #£42,176,00008 A% 1 2 % -

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was [& FXFriREEI - BEZAA - H2021F3A318 -
no other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares and i@ H i A TR M RBEERND T HEEBREEZ AR
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the  ERE{EHIEXVERE 2R F3N B2 M ERARABIWE 2

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2021. BEIRKE
Management contracts EEEN

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole R - W T 7 sk F A A BAR T Z ek E [ A
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or  Z[P %7~ SR RITHAL o

existed during the year.
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Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 80.0% of the Group's total revenue and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 30.2% of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for
approximately 34.1% of the Group's total revenue. None of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the
Company had an interest in these five largest customers and/or these five
largest suppliers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the requirements of applicable laws, codes and regulations and
that adequate disclosure pursuant thereto have been made.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance practices

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and
endeavours in following the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
"Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has complied with
the CG Code save for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, which is
explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies,
the setting of appropriate strategic policies, monitoring and controlling
the operation and financial performance of the Group, oversight of the
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligation.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, is responsible for
execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate system
and procedures of internal control and risk management, and oversight of
the day-to-day management of the Group's business.

To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed
manner, management provides the Board with monthly management report
which contains year-to-date with summaries of financial performance and key
events of the Group. The monthly management report gives Board members
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board members to
discharge their duties.

The corporate governance duties are performed by the Board. Pursuant
to the terms of reference of the Board, the primary duties of the Board in
relation to corporate governance include introducing and proposing relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and reviewing and determining
the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure the
corporate governance practices in the Group are in line with the relevant
requirements.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Ng Wang Pun, Dennis (appointed on 23 June 2021)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (resigned on 23 June 2021)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The brief biographical information of each Director is set out in the
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. Save as disclosed therein, there is no other relationship (whether
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships) among
the members of the Board.

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
in August 2013 and has posted it on the Company’'s website. The Board
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of the Company's performance. A truly diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, industry experience,
educational background, knowledge, expertise, culture, age and gender and
other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of
Directors will be based on merit while taking into account diversity. The
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and
the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
its continuous effectiveness.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the Chairman of the Company, is also the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. According to the Code Provision A.2.1,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. In view of that Mr. Yeung
has extensive experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group, the Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yeung provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership to improve the Company’s efficiency in decision-making
and execution, and effectively capture business opportunities. However, the
Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and
consider separating the roles of chairman and chief executive officer when it
thinks appropriate.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are as
follows:

The Chairman is responsible to determine the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group after consultation with the Board,
provide leadership for the Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure
proper proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have active
contribution to the Board's affairs. With the support from the Board’s
members, he manages to implement the major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer, with support of the executive Directors, is
to manage and operate the Group's day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Independent non-executive Directors

Throughout the year, the independent non-executive Directors represent
one-third of the Board and at least one of whom possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Re-election of members of the Board

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”). According to Bye-Law
99, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yuen Chi King Wyman, Mr. Che Wai
Hang Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”) and being eligible,
to offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 102(B), the Board shall have power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors
so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting but shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at such meeting. Dr. Ng Wang Pun, Dennis was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 June 2021.
Therefore, Dr. Ng will be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Board and committee attendance

Each year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies of
the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy, corporate
governance function and other major corporate activities. For such purposes,
regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance and
at least 14 days’ notice are given to all Directors so as to give them an
opportunity to attend. The meeting agenda and accompanying board papers
are circulated with sufficient time to allow the Directors to prepare before
meetings.

During the year, the Board held four meetings mainly to review and monitor
the financial performance of the Group; to discuss and approve the corporate
strategies of the Group; to consider and approve the annual budgets, the
financial reports and corporate governance related policies of the Group.
The Chairman of the Board also met with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors.

According to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. In the 2020 annual
general meeting, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, and
the external auditor of the Company attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.
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Board and committee attendance (continued)

Details of the attendance of each of the Directors at board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting held for the year ended 31
March 2021 are set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report
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EXERZEEECHERR#E)

REZRE201F3R31ALFE S ESHFEEESTE
% ZECRRBREEFAGZFBIEINTE

No. of meetings attended/held

HEBTEBERY
2020 annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination general

Name of Director Board Committee Committee  Committee meeting

20205 R
EEgE Exg EREEE FHEEE REZEET BFEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny T A 4/4 - 111 11 11
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon TR 1 48 4/4 - - - 11
Chow Man Yan, Michael X 414 - - - ”n
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TR 4/4 - - - 111
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 1518 4/4 - - - 11
Chow Lai Fung FEEE 4/4 - _ _ 11
Independent non-executive B I FEHITES

Directors

Chung Chi Ping, Roy BEEF 4/4 313 111 1 171
Che Wai Hang, Allen HEE 4/4 3/3 11 11 11
Lee Yiu Pun F R 4/4 3/3 17 ”n 7
Directors’ training BEEY

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, all Directors had attended
relevant seminars and courses. The costs for such training are borne by the
Company.

Directors attended seminars/conferences/forums relevant to his/her
professional duties as directors or self-study of the publications issued by the
regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers during the year ended
31 March 2021.

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and have provided a record of
training they received during the year ended 31 March 2021 to the Company.

Insurance

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in
respect of legal actions taken against the Directors.
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Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All the Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference
which are published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's
website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)

Dr. Ng Wang Pun, Dennis (appointed on 23 June 2021)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (resigned on 23 June 2021)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

The Board has adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority
and duties of the committee. The Audit Committee provides an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the group audit. Its duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and audit-related
services, supervise the Company’s internal financial reporting procedures
and management policies, and review the Company's risk management and
internal control systems as well as the internal audit function.

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and performed the
following duties:

- reviewed the results announcements, financial statements, interim and
annual reports of the Company, with a recommendation to the Board

for approval;

—  reviewed the risk management policy, risk register and internal audit
year plan of the Group;

- reviewed the effectiveness of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register; and

- considered and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the auditor of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)

Dr. Ng Wang Pun, Dennis (appointed on 23 June 2021)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (resigned on 23 June 2021)
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review and
determination of the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management of the Group. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors are stipulated in their service agreements with
the Company. Such packages, including basic salaries, director’s fee
and discretionary bonus, are determined by reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, prevailing market conditions and their
expected time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors are determined with
regard to their estimated time spent on the affairs of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and
performed the following duties:

—  reviewed and approved the proposed remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management of the Group;

- reviewed and make recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fees of independent non-executive Directors.

35

F 3R 2020/2021

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

EEEZES(#)
FHESS

FHZEemUT —BATEE R =RBF IR
EE@EMK:

HITEF
BEHEE

BUINITEE

BEELEE(EE)

RERIE L (R20219F6 523 H#EZ(T)
4§85+ (X20214E6 523 H BHF)
2R &

FMZEenBEDRRBEEEE LT RIMRER &R
M BRRBENBREAE -

FHZEeT 2RI REEFAEBEEERSARE
BEZHMERRAS - RITEFZHMMAS JINKE
FEARBRILZREWMENGTH - ZFHA(BEE
EHE  BEFERSRBBRA) NE2EREZRE
BEERER BT HERANRERRERARREE
FERERERMERE - BUIERATEETZME o5
B RER AR R EHAEEEMETE

REAN FHZEEEER—RE&H
BE

WREITHKT
- EHRWERKERTEFLSREEBZES
FEES

- EHBUFPTEFZEFHESIREFTSRY

EXTSEXEREABRAA



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Ng Wang Pun, Dennis (appointed on 23 June 2021)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (resigned on 23 June 2021)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors taking into account the independence requirements
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer, including but not limited to, the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members, and the measurable
objectives for implementing such policy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting and conducted
the following activities:

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

—  reviewed and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its measurable objectives; and
- reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the re-election

of Directors for re-election by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination policy

The Board adopted the Nomination Policy in January 2019 and has posted
it on the Company’s website. Nomination Policy sets out the criteria and
procedures for identifying and nominating suitably qualified candidates for
appointment to the Board. The selection criteria specified in the Nomination
Policy include:

—  commitment of available time and ability to devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company;

- reputation for integrity;

— accomplishment and/or experience in the relevant industry(ies);

—  effectiveness in carrying out the responsibilities of the Board; and
—  diversity in all its aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination procedures

For appointing a Director, the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate the candidate(s) based on the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy to determine whether the candidate(s) is qualified for
directorship. Further details regarding the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy, please refer to “Board Diversity Policy” and “Nomination
Policy” sections above respectively, The Nomination Committee makes
recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. Any Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy would be subject to election by the
shareholders at the next general meeting.

For proposing Director(s) to stand for election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and approval in accordance to the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

A circular containing the requisite information on the proposed Director(s)
will be sent to the shareholders prior to the general meeting in accordance

to the Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of Directors to stand for election at any general meeting.
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Company secretary

Mr. Yuen Chi King Wyman is the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company secretary”) and he is also an executive Director. The company
secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board meeting process, as well as

DREME

BRFHELERARARNRAME(REWE]) - B
NR—BRTEF - RRUBERRAREESERF
UREFEXRB e HARETERREARABRR(MK

communication among Board members, with shareholders of the Company (the ) REIEEZREMER - RER - BALABRER
“Shareholders”) and management. During the year, Mr. Yuen has confirmed  # SR DM5/ N5 2 FERE R ZE =3 -
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
Directors and senior management’s remuneration EENEHREEEMS
The remuneration of senior management of the Company for the year under REEFE @ ARFRISHAEREEBE 2SI WOT -
review is set out below:

Number of individuals
Band of remuneration B <& &0 AE
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7c£2,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1
Further particulars regarding the five highest paid employees and directors BEAXRGESHEIRESMHE 2 E—FEHISHRIHE

remuneration are set out in Notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$2,234,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,665,000. The balance of the
remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included the
review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$210,000; taxation
services, amounting to approximately HK$270,000; and other non-audit
services, amounting to approximately HK$89,000.

Disclosure obligations regarding inside information

In light of the disclosure obligations under the SFO with effect from 1
January 2013, the Board has established the following processes and
procedures across all relevant division(s) and department(s) of the Group for
complying with the disclosure obligations regarding “Inside Information”:

(i)  the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential inside
information to the Board; and

(ii)  the responsibilities of officers in preserving the confidentiality of inside

information, escalating upwards any such potential information and
cascading down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff.
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Securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior management
of the Group have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors and senior management throughout the year ended 31 March
2021,

The Board has also established procedures for relevant employees, including
certain employees of the Company, certain Directors or employees of its
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely to possess inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities, in respect of their dealings in the
Company'’s securities.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company, to
identify and manage the risks faced by the Group, as well as to ensure the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The design of risk management and internal control systems is to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business objectives, and
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

In view of the requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to the code
provisions on risk management which took effect in 2016, the Company
adopted a risk management policy in March 2016, which was subsequently
revised in 2017 and 2020. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee
with authority and responsibility to oversee the overall management of risks
and report the results to the Board as set out in the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee. The risk management policy is reviewed by the Audit
Committee from time to time.

The Board conducts continuous review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems through the Audit Committee and
internal audit team of the Company. The Company compiles a risk register
according to the risk assessment conducted at the enterprise level, monitors
it on an on-going basis by taking into account emerging issues.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)

The internal control systems and risk management which were reviewed
during the year included:

—  the scope of the risk management and internal control systems covering
strategic, operational, financial and compliance controls;

—  the risk management process, including risk assessment process, risk
prioritisation, and the design of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of the risks prioritised in the risk register;

- mid-year review on the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
mitigation measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register; and

—  the annual internal audit plan and the regular internal audit updates.

The internal audit team plays an important role to ensure the risk
management and internal control systems are operating effectively. It
independently reviews compliance of the Group's policy and workflows,
regulatory requirements, risk management and internal controls and evaluate
their adequacy and effectiveness. The internal audit plan is risk-and-control
based that covers the Group’s significant operations over a cycle and
recurring basis. The annual audit plan is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board’s review also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget. There were no
significant areas of concern identified during the year.

The procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating of inside
information are governed by the Model Code. The policy and procedures
of the Company are explained in the sections of “Disclosure obligations
regarding inside information” and “Securities transactions” of this Corporate
Governance Report.

In light of the above reviews and policies, the Board confirms that the
Group’s risk management and internal controls systems are effective and
adequate.

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report to the shareholders of the Company on
pages 79 to 85 of this annual report.
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Shareholders’ right

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition

1.1

Shareholders have the right to requisition the Company to
convene a special general meeting in the manner prescribed by
and set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act.

Bye-Law 62 provides “The Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.” Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act,
Shareholders (“General Meeting Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors to forthwith proceed duly to convene
a special general meeting by depositing a written requisition
(“General Meeting Requisition”) at the registered office of the
Company.

The General Meeting Requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at
the meeting), and must be signed by the General Meeting
Requisitionists; the General Meeting Requisition may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
General Meeting Requisitionists.

The General Meeting Requisition shall be deposited at the
registered office and preferably, copied to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company and marked for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the Company
at their respective address below:

Registered office of the Company

Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM10

Bermuda

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Head office and principal place of business of the Company
16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

41

F 3R 2020/2021

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

IR R
FRAMBRRBHINAREZBRERF

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

PERA IR AR AR R A RDERE K ATH
FIZ2 R ARD R RHARRRSIAE

REMAE{FRE  EEZRBEERRA
BRRRBRAKRRENAE - WARDQRDE
ﬁﬁ%TEE’FiiJiéﬁ FBRRERIRE  tRE

ez R ERFBRERIAS - BIFTH&HERK
A”Fﬁﬂx%%%ﬁ@ o IRIBRRDEET4E -
BEXFREZEARALRRABERZA L

ﬁT&EZK AIRERARE ERRZEA - B%
PRGN D B 2 BERAT J\E"WL“Z*E’J
BR(IERREEFLALD  IERE@R

KR QE%I%J)K‘JZK AL =
BE - UWBEREFUZ AR A FRBRRE
RE e

B QE%ZJ:%ZE\@EHQE% AE(BRER

T2 LEZNER Zﬁ\%“ﬂxij( & R

AEE Hx% g pﬁEJZi—JEEyﬁT%fWEM

B SCAFAE R - ﬁﬁlf’\éﬁ%ﬁ—uij‘cl«){tﬂ’ﬂﬂ’iﬁ
BHERAESE

RERAEFREARZERNR BN MM =
e BRI R PR E B AN E AR QR A 48
FREEBLEXRMWE  ERHREARETAR
BEFRAAWE - uwT

PAN/NSI Sl B
Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10

Bermuda

ERe ARWMEK
RARRHERR TS EEME
6

EA R

D HEBESHKI385%
TR R ES

E1FE161E

BERe ARWEK

ETEEXERABRAF



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Shareholders’ right (Continued)

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition (Continued)

1.5

1.6

If the Directors fails to proceed to duly convene such meeting
within 21 days from the date of the deposit of General Meeting
Requisition as set out in the paragraph 1.2 above, the General
Meeting Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of their total voting rights, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of
the General Meeting Requisition. A meeting so convened by the
General Meeting Requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the General Meeting
Requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Board to duly
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the General Meeting
Requisitionists by the Company.

2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1

2.2

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Address:  17M Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2529 6087

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the following designated contacts, correspondence
addresses, email addresses and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Address:  16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: ir@fujikon.com

Tel: (852) 2605 5008

Fax: (852) 2694 1338
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

2.

Procedures for raising enquiries (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Shareholders are encouraged to make enquiries via the online
enquiry form available on the Company’s website at www.fujikon.
com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

3.1

3.2

Section 79 of the Companies Act provides that, at the expense of
the Resolution Requisitionists (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below)
unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing by the Resolution
Requisitionists:

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

"Resolution Requisitionists” means Shareholders making a
requisition under paragraph 3.1 above and shall constitute either:

(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(b)  not less than one hundred Shareholders.
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any
such resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by giving
notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of
the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to be
met before the Company is bound to give any notice of resolution
or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section 80 of the
Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound to give notice
of any resolution or to circulate any statement as mentioned in
paragraph 3.1 above unless:—

(@) a copy of the requisition signed by the Resolution
Requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them
contain the signatures of all the Resolution Requisitionists,
is deposited at the registered office of the Company:—

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;
and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one
week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expense in
giving effect to the procedures in paragraph 3.1 above
(i.e. the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of
statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)
4. Procedures for propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Bye-law 103, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director at any general meeting appointed for
such election shall follow the procedures as prescribed in Bye-law 103.
Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are
available on the website of the Company.

The relevant procedures are set out in the document titled “Shareholders’
rights” and "Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director” which are available on the websites of the Company.

Constitutional documents

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year.

Relations with shareholders

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors to keep them abreast of the Company's developments.
The Company also holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

To ensure effective communication with the Shareholders, the Company
has adopted a formal shareholder communication policy to ensure that the
Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.fujikon.com) to keep its
Shareholders and the investing public posted of the Company’s business
developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and functions,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees,
procedures of nomination of directors for election, shareholders’ rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company's website will be updated from time
to time.

The Company’s annual general meeting is one of the important platforms
to communication with the Shareholders. The Annual General Meeting
will be held at 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza, 138 Shatin Rural
Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong on 13 August 2021. The
full text of the resolutions and explanatory notes in respect of the meeting
are contained in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. All Shareholders
are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting and participate in
communicating with the Company.
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CEEARS
Dividend policy BB BUR

The Board has approved and adopted the dividend policy in 2019 which is  EZH2H2019F M EWIRMARBHE » ZBEDTIE
published on the Company’s website. The dividend policy aims to ensure RAARATAAUL F - REREE LR ASRELEKRETE
a stable return to the shareholders and to use the Group’s capital more [E3f @ WREZRERETEAENMERAALAEER 2B
effectively with this dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the 7K - REZRIEHEMIRER  ZEZ@RZEIUNTEE:
Board shall take into account the following factors:

(@) the requirements of the Company under applicable laws and (a) BEAERFERE TAQAT T

regulations;
(b) the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the (b)) ZARQFREWEBAGZIREEF LAl HH G
Company and its subsidiaries; £%8

IR R BVA B2 E R R EARS]

(c) any financial covenants and other restrictions bound to the Company; ()

\

HIfE R R B RBNETE - 28

(d) the financial performance expansion plans, working capital (d) ZAAXAFK
BeBRkRERREFNR

requirements, and anticipated cash needs of the Company and its

subsidiaries;
(e) cash dividends from the subsidiaries to the Company; and (e) BMIBARIMARNRERERERE &
(f)  other factors which the Board may deem appropriate. () EZESSERABEEZHMERE -

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall be at the JRESERYNZFEARBRBEAREES2HENBR
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and final dividend shall be subject & - RARHAR BB NIKEBE XS FHE -
to the shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021 7 2001F6A228
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Our vision

Fujikon is principally engaged in the design, manufacturing, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other
electronic products. The Group has been focusing on technology
innovation to solidify its position in the electro-acoustic market, in
an effort to become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in
the electro-acoustic and electronic industries. We also place great
emphasis on the sustainable development of the Group while we strive
to expand our business. We have committed to reducing impacts on
the environment from our business operations, safeguarding employee
rights and interests.

We incorporate the concept of sustainable development into
the Group's management policy. The Board has formulated the
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") strategy, reqularly
reviewed the key ESG indicators and assessed relevant risks, so
as to ensure the Group has adopted and maintained effective risk
management and internal control measures at the ESG level. We will
continue to firmly adhere to the concept of sustainability development.
We strive to provide customers with high value-added and highly
differentiated products with advanced and innovative technologies,
with an aim to become long-term partner for the world leading clients
and create greater value for the stakeholders.

About this section

The Group is committed to achieving sustainable development by
engaging environmental protection and social development as an
integral part of our business development. This section presents
the environmental and social performance of the Group. This report
is prepared in accordance with the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to conform
with the relevant disclosure requirements for listed companies issued
by the Stock Exchange. This report has been approved by the Board for
issue.

Unless otherwise stated, this section highlights the environmental and
operation governance performance of Charter Media (Dongguan) Co.,
Ltd. under the Group which is located in Dongguan, China (hereinafter
referred to as the “Headsets and Headphones Plant”), as well as the
employment and other social performance of the Hong Kong office and
its plants in China. This report covers the period from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERRE

Environmental, social and governance structure

In order to effectively manage the ESG-related risks, we have
established the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the
"ESG Committee”) which is in charge of formulating the overall ESG
strategies and objectives, regularly monitoring the key performance
indicators and compliance with laws and regulations, and provides
reports on the overall ESG performance to the Board at least once a
year for approval. An Environmental, Social and Governance Working
Group has been established under the ESG Committee, which is
responsible for assisting the ESG Committee in coordinating the
implementation and execution of the relevant ESG measures by all
departments, collecting relevant key performance indicator data and
carrying out the report compilation on a monthly basis.
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Reporting Principles

The Group has taken into account of the following reporting principles
in the preparation of this report:

Materiality: In addition to considering the sustainable development
goals of the Group and the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group regularly communicated with
its stakeholders to understand their concerns relating to sustainable
development issues.

Quantitative: With regard to the quantitative information (e.g. key
performance indicators in respect of environment) reported in this
report, we disclosed the data for the year, which allows stakeholders to
compare our performance over time.

Balance: We aim to keep our report balanced and make fair disclosure
on the progress of the most critical aspects of our performance.

Consistency: The Group prepared and presented the report in
accordance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, so as to make year-on-year comparison with the
previous key performance indicators of the Group.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

48

B HERERZER

E./IZIIME J

EEE % /7 Rl
RIVEHEAREREE T ATHRERA

BEEM  RTEEEEUREZRNE R
RAERETRBME2IFHZRE &R
ERmEEs I KREITEREN DA A
B AR PIREN A ERRERE -

Bt AARERNERNWE(LEN - MIRFERE
BMIER BB TAFENRE  EFNHE
B PIHRABER REL L E -

PSRN BEERERRE TS UsEE

KRR THEAEEEL AT -

—Bi KERR ﬁﬁxﬁﬁiﬁii‘ﬁiﬁﬁlm‘ﬁzﬁﬁ
HZIRE HERERRERESIRTSER
SEBENTREREERRATRFLE

Annual Report 2020/2021



5. Stakeholder engagement and material issues
5.1 Stakeholder engagement

The Group always attaches great importance to the opinions
of the stakeholders. The key stakeholders in our business
include customers, employees, suppliers, investors, government
authorities, communities and industry associations. We believe
that good communication with the stakeholders provides
meaningful reference which is helpful for the Group in formulating
its long-term goals to promote sustainable development.

The following are the main communication channels between the
Group and various stakeholders:

Customers Employees

Phone calls/emails e Training for occupational health

e Customer visits and factory audits ~ and safety

e Trade exhibitions ¢ Notice boards

e Questionnaire survey e Opinion collection boxes/mail
boxes/emails/Enterprise Wechat

e Job performance assessment

¢ Questionnaire survey

Suppliers Community

e Phone calls/emails e Participation in community
¢ Annual audits for suppliers activities
e Questionnaire survey e Donation/sponsorship

Shareholders and investors Regulatory agencies

o Annual results and interim results ® Government websites
o Official documents
e Inspections and assessments

announcements
e Annual reports/interim reports
e Corporate website
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5. Stakeholder engagement and material issues 5. FFHEFANSEREEUEE &)
(Continued)

5.2 Materiality analysis 52 EEMSMN

To ensure that this report covers material ESG issues in the
Group's core business and presents appropriate response
to concerns of the stakeholders, we gather the views of
stakeholders of our headsets and headphones business mainly
through conducting questionnaires to collect feedbacks from our
customers, employees and suppliers, which helps the Board to
assess the importance of different ESG-related issues and the
priority of resource allocation. The opinions of the stakeholders
will help us to identify and prioritise the relative material ESG-
related issues, which will enable us to identify the risks associated
with our main businesses and to develop policies and measures to

RERABEREAREEEEHERE -
gRERTHEHMNEZERE  WEEHERE
MEARTHRTIER  HAETREERE
BT  BIRHERKREER - AEEH
SHETHEEEREIENER  EPES
BRMEHRE e MER T E A EHEED
ERURRRERNBIRRF o FamiERE7s
MERAIAGBRMAOHLBLEERER
MR - HEREBTENREEE - U
SR E R R ARR - I HIEMHERBER
RSB e A FE SRR -

cope with the challenges.

The table below summarises the material ESG issues identified

through the above communication activity:

Labour standard — prohibition of child labour or
forced labour

85 TARI—Py -8 T skagil55 T
Safety and health

B2 R

Employment relationship

R RREE A

Employee training and development
BITHEIIRER

Environmental protection regulations
RBREER

Use of resources

BIRGEA

Environment and natural resources
RERAAEIR

Climate change

RUREE AL

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

TREHETRXBBEBMENRE L8

LERERMRERE

Anti-corruption

RE®

Intellectual property rights

S EE

Product quality verification and recall mechanism
E B BT N B W

Product inquiry mechanism, post-sale services and
feedback mechanism

EmEANEE - E& RS RE R RS
Customer privacy

BFEME

Supply chain management

HERE R

Community investment
HEREA
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RE-HERERRSE

Stakeholder engagement and material issues 5. FZHEBESFNSEREEMHEE #2)

(Continued)

5.2 Materiality analysis (Continued) 5.2 EEMSM(E)

The questionnaires require the interviewed stakeholders to
prioritise the environmental and social issues with a rating of 0
(least important) to 5 (most important). As always, the results
of the questionnaires for the year reflect that the Group's
stakeholders are very concerned about three aspects (i.e.
employment, environmental protection and operation governance).

BFIRIBIREER
Compliance with
Environmental
Protection Regulations
MR & »

Community Investment

k&S
Anti-corruption

EmEE
Product Responsibility

e
Supply Chain Management

AT
Labour Standards

BREKEI
Development and Training

BEERZFOMERATRRERE & H
BHO(FTEE)RS (HREZ)IH - —W
- RERBSHERRR T EBER N AR
THEMET  RERENEEER=TH
HWEERL -

BIREM

Use of Resources

IRERKRABIR
Environment and
Natural Resources

(=

RIREAE
Climate Change

EBRIR

Employment Relationship

fREEZ 2
Health and Safety
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6. Environmental protection 6. REIRE
6.1 Environmental management system 6.1 REEERA
We are dedicated in promoting emission reduction and ABHAEERRE  BRARH2EBEIRZ
environmental protection in order to achieve sustainable TE- BXEBH  BRPBNIREBREEEY
development. In conducting our business, we strive to mitigate RENGEMERR  TEFREBNEER
the damages and risks to the environment caused by day- B EE AR HH—H SEIREEY
to-day operations, and implement energy conservation and RIBRENSHER - RN ER - T
emission reduction in the production process of the headsets and VEHFRIREEIEER - —AE - BE
headphones business, while efforts have been made to enhance HABERRELE  EBEEREARE -

the awareness of employees and clients regarding environmental
protection as well as resource and energy conservation. As
always, our established environmental management system
continued to ensure compliance with the national environmental
protection regulations and our continuous success in emission

reduction.

The Headsets and Headphones Plant of the Group has maintained SEET 0 F TSR E R B (R#515014001
the 1S014001 Environmental Management System Certification IRIEE HEE ZRF([15014001]) MA KIECQ
("1S014001") and the IECQ QC080000 Hazardous Substances QC080000 HEW T BIZE LB RRE - U
Process Management System Certification, which demonstrates BREBETRRSEN TEEBEERED -

that the Group's performance in environmental protection lives up
to the international standards.

sl e || @mm ===
Certificate of Registration ————

Hanmil - 1m0 10000
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6.

Environmental protection (Continued)

6.2 Climate change

The Headsets and Headphones Plant has referred to the framework
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD")
to determine the climate-related measures, and identified the
climate-related risks according to the “Management Procedures
for Risks and Opportunities” under the internal management
policy. These underlying risks are periodically monitored in
accordance with the “Operation Risk and Emergency Management
Plan”, which includes emergency and restoration guidelines for
climate-related natural disasters, so as to ensure the appropriate
supervision, measurement and mitigation in respect of those risks.

The climate change issue has attracted much attention in
recent years, which resulted in not only the increasingly stricter
environmental laws and regulations, but also the rigorous
demands from well-known brand clients for the incorporation
of environmental-protection features into their products and
the application of environmental-friendly materials. In order to
address the challenges brought by climate change, the Headsets
and Headphones Plant has obtained the 1SO14001: 2015
Environmental Management System and the QC080000: 2017
Hazardous Substances Process Management System certifications
by implementing the relevant measures, so as to minimise
the underlying impacts of its day-to-day operation on the
environment. As part of our strategy to address climate change,
we are committed to minimising energy consumption in our day-
to-day operation for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions
through a variety of energy and resources saving plans. For the
purpose of reducing carbon emissions, close cooperation is also
kept with our suppliers and clients in terms of better design of
environmental-friendly products and enhancement of production
efficiency. In addition, we keep a close watch on international
and local laws and regulations relating to climate change, and
has engaged an independent environmental inspection company
to examine the waste gas and waste water discharged by the
Headsets and Headphones Plant on a regular basis.

£4§ 20202021 D3
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Environmental protection (Continued)

6.3 Emissions and wastes

The Group is primarily engaged in the production of headsets and
headphones. In compliance with the environmental protection
laws and regulations in China, and following the principle of up-
to-standard emission and mitigating impacts of pollutants on
the environment and the surrounding areas, we are dedicated
to reducing discharge of pollutants and wastes generated
from business operations by the means of green purchasing
and cleaner production. In compliance with the requirements
of the 1SO14001, the Headsets and Headphones Plant has
established a comprehensive management system, formulated
guidelines on reducing all kinds of emissions and actively
introduced emission abatement technology and equipments.
The Headsets and Headphones Plant has obtained the pollutant
discharge license issued by Dongguan Environmental Protection
Bureau (BR2M A AEZREE). In addition, we also engaged an
independent environmental inspection company to examine the
waste gas and waste water discharged by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant, with the result showing that the emissions
satisfied the national and local emission standards.

Waste gas

The waste gas emissions from the production process of the
headsets and headphones mainly include volatile organic
compounds (“VOCs") from painting and pad printing operation,
tin and its compounds from the soldering process of the
assembling operation, non-methane hydrocarbons and particles
from the molding and assembling process and exhaust gas of
power generators.

To further reduce emission, the Headsets and Headphones Plant
installed organic waste gas treatment equipment which can purify
the waste gas produced from painting, pad printing, molding
and assembling process through UV photolysis and active carbon
adsorption device, and these equipment have been put into
full operation. In addition, renovation was also carried out on
the waste gas pipeline of the workshops, effectively reducing
the concentration of waste gas emission that contains tin and
its compounds. In particular, the concentration of waste gas
emission that contains tin and its compounds mainly originated
from the surface mount technology machines (“SMT machines”)
of the electronic assembly workshop was reduced significantly as
compared to that of last year. Particles, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen
oxide and other waste gas emissions are mainly produced from
exhaust gas of power generators, which are collected and subject
to water sprinkling process treatment for emission at a high
altitude, with the monitoring result showing that the emissions
were lower than the national and local emission standard limits.
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Waste gas (Continued)

Environmental protection (Continued)

6.3 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

The independent environmental inspection company has examined
the waste gas originated from the production of the Headsets and
Headphones Plant, with the result showing that the emissions
were lower than the national and local emission standard limits.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

6. RERE#®)
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6.3 BFM R BERY (&)

BER (&)

BIURBERAABCRAEBEBRENLE
ERFEEMNER  AEREERERR
W7 PR IZERE -

Waste gas
Emission source emissions Unit
BERAROR BER Y 2021 2020 B
Soldering process of SMT Tin and its 0.0008 0.0015 mg/m?3
machines compounds’
At A IR T HRE{EEY 25,/ K
Exhaust gas of power generators  Particles <20 22.72 mg/m?3
BEERER FERLY) 25,/ K
Sulfur dioxide 70 3.00 mg/m?3
—&fbm VP
Nitrogen oxide 113 130.50 mg/m?3
REY LAV
Painting, pad printing process Benzene 0.1030 0.0315 mg/m?3
Sl BENLIRF FiS 25,/ K
Toluene 0.4147 0.1049 mg/m?3
S 25,/ MK
Xylene 0.2180 0.0529 mg/m?3
—HRX LAV
Total VOCs 7.7751 1.8346 mg/m?3
BIBEIEARY LAV
Assembling and molding process  Non-methane 4.3520 3.3273 mg/m?3
hydrocarbons
KR ERFEIF FE B e A AR 25,/ K
Assembling process Particles 0.3428 0.3659 mg/m?3
KAELF FERLY) 25,/ K
i WREIER R E T EHRUREIEFER

Note' Testing data was derived from the SMT machines of the "electronic

assembly workshop” which are the major emission source
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6. Environmental protection (Continued) 6. RERE#E)
6.3 Emissions and wastes (Continued) 6.3 BE R EEEY (&)
Waste water S5k

The industrial waste water generated by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant is mainly discharged from painting operation.
In order to reduce industrial waste water discharge from the
source, the Headsets and Headphones Plant has introduced a
circulating water treatment system to improve the waste water
filtration process. In addition, we have introduced relevant
procedures and corresponding facilities to ensure that industrial
waste water is separately collected and pretreated by a dedicated
sedimentation basin before transferring it to the institutions
recognised by the environmental protection authority for recycling
and treatment. Moreover, we conduct regular examinations on the
industrial waste water from the Headsets and Headphones Plant
and domestic waste water from the dormitory buildings to ensure
all water quality indicators meet the national emission standards.

Stricter requirements on the surface of the products and more
sophisticated process requirements have contributed to the
increased volume of waste water discharged during this year,
in spite of which, energy conservation and emission reduction
remain our key follow-on projects. We continue to enhance waste
water treatment in strict compliance with the 1SO14001 standard
and requirements of the local government, so as to meet the
relevant standards.

HMEBBEEEN THESKEERAER
1EZ - BTRORBERBIELRS/KES - B
BB B ARRKERS - BE5KBIE
BR o R HAME HIERRIZFEERER
e - MR TERSKEBYSE - mEFINIITR
WEITIREE - RIZZAIRRARFTIA AT A
BOWERE - B0 HFIE e E#ER
BEHHN TESKRBEEHELENEES
Ko LRSS EKEEENEBRFENIR

£ o

BEEMRBERMNERMIEZRMB
M ANFERBEKEERER EFEEAER - 8
BAVDAGERERBEET BAEEMRERE -
ERAG1Z FRISO1400 1 Z A E BT &) Z 3K -
TET ISR EEKERIE - DUER|EK -

Industrial waste water Unit
TIE55K 2021 2020 By
Generation of industrial waste water? 86.87 63.12 Ton
T 355 KEE A2 72
Intensity

Gl

Generation or discharge of industrial waste
water/thousand units produced

THTKEESIBRE BTEENK

Note? Industrial waste water represents waste water from painting

operation
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6.

Environmental protection (Continued)

6.3 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Greenhouse gas

We have been taking proactive measures to effectively
reduce greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions and the total GHG
emissions decreased by approximately 14% for the year. With
the technology advancement and higher standard of customer
requirement, our products have seen an increasingly complicated
production process, thus increasing the overall carbon dioxide
("C0,") emission intensity. Nevertheless, we will continue to
make improvement to alleviate impacts on the environment.
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RERE (#)
6.3 B REBEY (&)

BERE

B —ERBRRERE R RERSE
(MREREB DR FERBEREBHOH
MBERDHN4%  BEEREELRFEM
MEERMREAERTEHRES B
SAHR(T — 8 etk ) B E B m A AT g
me BANERHEREARDERENF
.

Greenhouse gas Unit
BAERE 2021 2020 By
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)3 211.52 336.32 tC02e
BERBE RPN (EEE)3 WE —EALTRBEE £
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)* 7,443.51 8,559.41 tC02e
BER R B (FE52)* WE —EALTRBEE £
Total GHG emissions 7,655.03 8,895.73 tCOze
BER B RERT WE —EALTRBEE £
Intensity

CAES

Emission of CO2/thousand units produced 2.92 2.48 Ton/thousand units produced

“RIEBRPRE BT EENE

Note® Direct GHG emissions are attributable to petroleum and diesel
consumed by commercial vehicles, liquified gas consumed by
canteens and refrigerants for air-conditioning systems.

Note* Indirect GHG emissions are attributable to electricity bought from
external parties.
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6. Environmental protection (Continued) 6. RERE#E)
6.3 Emissions and wastes (Continued) 6.3 BE R EEEY (&)
Wastes BEEY

We have waste treatment procedures in place. In terms of
hazardous wastes, we safely transfer the hazardous substances
like waste paint residue and used oil in accordance with the
"Management Regulation on Hazardous Wastes Manifests”, and
hand them over to the collection service providers approved
by the environmental protection authority for recycling
and treatment. For non-hazardous wastes, recyclable and
nonrecyclable wastes are sorted out and stored separately as
before. Most of the non-hazardous wastes are to be recycled, so
as to reduce negative impacts on the environment.

Facility treatment produced more hazardous wastes as a result
of the increasingly stricter environmental laws and regulations.
Total volume of hazardous wastes (including used electrical and
electronic products, chemical wastes and used gas cylinders)
produced from operating activities during this financial year
was 40 tons. However, the Headsets and Headphones Plant
has implemented proper treatment of the hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes according to the procedures set by the
Company. The major discharge of industrial wastes by the
Headsets and Headphones Plant are shown below:

BN EEERIEEZEMNER - BT
Bom - RARE EREDESHEERE
WEIZ2EBERRE  BERASAZY
B WRHIRREPTHAEN DR RIE - &
REEEMTTE - ROFFES A E AR R
TR EREER D BB - B ARy B E
FHETTERI BIRER - KL RRERE
G2

BB HRDERENEIEREELE S
e EEY - AMFRERHELNBIRAE
MEE(BRERERANMEFER  BE(L
B MR) R400E - BEEEEBEE DR
ROBBENREF  WEREASTNETE
Y- TRIMEREBBENSHEIET
ERBEEYOHNE

Wastes Unit

BEY 2021 2020 B

Hazardous wastes® 40 30 Ton

BEERS g

Non-hazardous wastes® 793 707 Ton

mERERS g

Intensity

CAES

Hazardous wastes discharged/thousand units 0.015 0.008 Ton/thousand units produced
produced

BEBENERE/BTEEHH WE/FTEEHH

Non-hazardous wastes discharged/thousand 0.303 0.197 Ton/thousand units produced
units produced

BEENEREBTEEHH Wa,/GTHEEHH

Notes Hazardous wastes include used oil barrels, oil wiping gloves, waste #HE AEENOEROR  BRMFE - BE

light tubes, used ink slag, waste paint residue and used oil, etc. EBERED  BERRE - BEHEME -
Note® Non-hazardous wastes include used cardboard boxes, used plastic Har BREERE - BERBE(EBRBIULREMES

tips (plastics) and other non-hazardous wastes, etc.
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6.

Environmental protection (Continued)

6.4 Energy Conservation

The Group proactively works in line with national environmental
policies. We also have taken a series of measures in the Headsets
and Headphones Plant to reduce energy consumption, including
using air-conditioners and lightings as less often as possible,
reducing the idle time of production machines and adopting
high-efficiency production machinery, etc. During the 2019/20
financial year, solar panels were installed on the roofs of certain
dormitories by the Headsets and Headphones Plant, the first step
taken to transform to a mode based on renewable energy.

The production facilities of the Headsets and Headphones Plant
are mainly comprised of assembly workshops and component
workshops, which primarily consume electricity during production.
A majority of our energy saving projects therefore focus on
reducing electricity consumption. During the 2020/21 financial
year, production workshops and certain part of the public area
were re-equipped with motion sensor switches to reduce the
lighting time wasted and in turn electricity consumption. In the
future, we will continue to apply energy saving technologies to
reduce energy consumption.

During the past year, the diesel consumption was reduced
significantly mainly due to the reduction of self power generation.
Moreover, we recorded decrease in electricity and water
consumption during this financial year due to the reduction in
production output and staff headcount as a result of decreased
production needs. The increase in the intensity of electricity and
water consumption was also due to the product portfolio and
production process during the year. We will continue to promote
environmental protection and energy conservation, so as to
mitigate and reduce negative impacts on the environment and
facilitate the sustainable development of the Group.
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6. Environmental protection (Continued) 6. RERE#)
6.4 Energy Conservation (Continued) 6.4 Eige(4)

Use of resources Unit

BRER 2021 2020 By

Use of energy

BEIR(E A

Electricity 11,807,600 13,577,740 kWh

AEE FTRE

Diesel 1,640 17,661 Litre
geh e 7t

Liquified petroleum gas 17,765 25,845 Kilogram

RIELA MRS NI

Water consumption

FA7K

Water 137,780 183,164 m3

X2 LA

Intensity

Electricity consumption/thousand units produced 4,506 3,787 kWh/thousand units produced

REEFERE SFTEENK TRE /" SFTEEHH

Water consumption/thousand units produced 52.58 51.09  m?/thousand units produced

6.5

FKERE BTHEHK

Water used by the Headsets and Headphones Plant is sourced
locally and there is no water sourcing issue.

Treasure our environment and resources

Over the years, we actively enhanced environmental benefits
in the production process, achieving significant outcomes.
Consumables used in production are sorted out for recycling and
reuse as much as possible, so as to reduce the consumption of
social resources. As the packaging design and materials selection
for the brand products of the customers, whose production and
sales are the main functions of the headsets and headphones
business, is prescribed by the customers, the disclosure on the
consumption volume of relevant packaging materials is not
applicable to the Group's key performance indicators.
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Employment

The Group owes its success to the dedication and contributions by
its employees. Therefore, we make great efforts to maintain a good
relationship with our employees. We comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to recruitment and promotion, remuneration,
working hours, rest periods, dismissal, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and harassment as well as other benefits and
welfare, including the Employment Ordinance, the Labour Law, etc.
Our efforts have won us recognition from the relevant authorities,
such as the Good MPF Employer Award granted by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority of Hong Kong in recognition of
the Group's role of model employer for its commitment to protect
and strengthen employee retirement benefits, and the Good Employer
Charter certificate issued by the Labour Department of Hong Kong
in recognition of the Group's commitment to the employee-oriented
principle, employee caring measures and better benefits for the
employees than those provided under the Employment Ordinance.
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Employment (Continued)

7.1 Diversified and equitable workplace

We make great efforts to establish an equal, respectful and non-
discriminate recruitment policy and create a diversified and
equitable workplace. On employee recruitment and promotion, by
upholding the principle of merit and anti-discrimination policy, we
treat every employee equally regardless of their race, colour, age,
marital and family status, religion, nationality and disability. We
have also established a mechanism for investigating complaints
about discrimination, so as to ensure a fair, confidential
and independent process. The Group has adopted a “zero
tolerance” policy towards any form of discrimination, violence
and harassment. During the reporting period, the Group did not
receive any report of discrimination or harassment.

In respect of retaining talents, the Group has established
a competitive remuneration and benefit system based on
various factors such as market pay trend, job nature and skills,
qualification and experience of the employees. In addition,
the Group has established different performance indicators
according to job description of different positions, and inspects
work performance of the employees through regular appraisal,
so as to review and determine the remuneration and promotion
arrangement of such employees. Moreover, we also offer
discretionary bonus based on the performance of the Group
and individual employees in recognition of their outstanding
achievements. As of 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 2,562
(2020: 3,346) full-time employees and 251 (2020: 302) contract
labour. Below is a breakdown of our workforce by age, gender
and geography:

229 29

A

UERTITESHAR

Headcount by Age

= 1.1% Below 20 2057 A T = 38.2% Male 551

7. ERE#®)
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=
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BREBAT  EESETHENEHNBEE - 8
THITEMEEFE  EEREBRERES
TEATERFNNHFHREFNER - R
ETRMEMCOTERL ST TRKRRE
ZEBTHIGEI@AALIERER &
AREEMPNFSKFEEAFTEE - It
Sh o Bt IREBRE TRIBERBBIL
4 BEETEHETEMNRRE - 1K2021F3
A31H - SEEA2EE T #£2,562%(2020:
3,346 4 ) R 487 125144 (2020: 3024 ) « &
BB TinFie - R REE ST
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Headcount by Gender Headcount by Geography

= 96.4% Mainland China /1 B Ayt

= 28.9% 20 to below 35 203555 LA T~ = 61.8% Female 2% = 3.6% Hong Kong &

= 61.1% 35 to below 50 35 505% LA
8.9% 50 or above 50553 A _F

Note: The employee data for the year has been disclosed in accordance
with the requirements under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange which are effective during
this financial year and on 30 June 2020, among which the employee
data by Geography is provided for the first time while the number
and percentage of employees by position and education which are
not key indicators required for disclosure have been deleted.
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7.

Employment (Continued)

7.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

In addition, in order to enhance the staff's sense of belonging
and facilitate a more harmonious working atmosphere, we have
organised a variety of employee activities from time to time,
including monthly birthday parties, Christmas party, Annual
Party and all kinds of sports events, etc., so as to enhance
the cohesion among the staff, and help to build mutual trust
between the management and employees, inspiring the staff to
make contributions to the Group's success, creating a pleasant
working environment and promoting the sustainable and stable
development of the Company.
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The Group has received the “Happy Company” award from the
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation since 2013 and was
accredited the “Happy Company 5 Years Plus” logo in recognition
of the efforts and achievements made by the Group in building a
happy workplace.
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Employment (continued)

7.1

1.2

Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

During the reporting period, the average turnover rate of the
Group was 4.3% (2020: 8.3%), a breakdown of which by age,
gender and geography is as below:

Average turnover rate

7. EBR#=)
7.1 SR VPENTEREE)

ABEMA - FENTHETRAEXRL3%
(2020: 8.3%) * LF#e « ERI K [E B 5 40
T

TR R 2021

By age RER

Below 20 2065 A~ 0.5%

20 to below 35 2023554 2.2%

35 to below 50 352505 A 1.4%

50 or above 505% 8 A 0.2%
4.3%

By gender BRI

Male B 2.0%

Female peg i 2.3%
4.3%

By geography BihE

Mainland China AR B A 4.2%

Hong Kong B 0.1%
4.3%

Labour standard

We strictly comply with the International Labour Organisation
Conventions, national labour laws and other applicable
regulations including the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour, and prohibit the use of child labour and forced
labour. We have adopted measures to prevent such circumstances,
including carefully verifying the identity information of each
applicant during the recruitment process, introducing the face
recognition system in the Headsets and Headphones Plant to
verify whether the information and supporting certificate provided
are consistent with the applicant, and rejecting organisations
with child labour or forced labour from our business dealings or
cooperation. Any potential breach will not be tolerated, and shall
be investigated and addressed. During the year, the Group did not
receive any reported instances on child labour or forced labour.
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7.

Employment (continued)

7.3

7.4

Communication with employees

Information is disseminated via the intranet and the Enterprise
WeChat of the Group, so as to keep the employees updated on
the Group’s latest information in a timely manner. In addition, the
Group has also established various channels such as social media
platform, suggestion boxes and hotlines for the employees to
provide advices and suggestions, so as to improve the deficiency
in the Group's existing employee management system or policies,
with an aim to create a better working environment for the
employees.

Health and safety

The Group is committed to creating for the employees a working
environment that is not only secure but also appropriate.
Therefore, in accordance with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance and the national occupational-health standards
and requirements of China, we have formulated relevant safety
regulations and rules as well as training programmes, including
offering the employees safety trainings on a regular basis which
enables employees to enrich relevant occupational safety and
health knowledge and protects the employees from work-related
injuries; arranging examination of the display screens from time
to time and organising various health-related seminars; and
publishing relevant information of occupational safety and health
on notice boards. Moreover, every year we organise physical
examination for our drivers, and have formulated driver guidelines
to ensure the safety of drivers and passengers.
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Employment (continued)

7.4 Health and safety (Continued)

1.5

The Group has also purchased business insurance and personal
accident insurance for the employees, with an aim to provide
them with insurance coverage against any accidents occurred at
work or after work. Employees will be reimbursed for any injury,
disability or casualty caused by accidents. The Group has achieved
zero work-related casualty over the past three years, and 11 (2020:
14) employees were injured at work. The number of lost working
days due to work-related injuries for the year was 126.

We will continue to improve safety protection facilities and spare
no efforts in maintaining a healthy and safe working environment
for all employees, so as to keep abreast of the goal of achieving
"zero” accident and reduce the risks of accidents and work-
related injuries to employees.

Training and development

The Group makes great efforts to provide trainings for the
employees, and has developed a variety of training programmes
based on their respective needs, with an aim to promote mutual
growth and development of the employees and the Group. The
Group provides orientation trainings for new employees, enabling
them to get familiar with the Group’s policies and operation of
various departments. As for veteran employees, the Group has
developed in-house training programmes or provided subsidised
external trainings based on the Group's development strategy and
employees’ individual performance, with an aim to encourage the
employees to pursue lifelong learning, improve their professional
skills and build a reserve of adequate talents for the business
development of the Group.

Employee training

7. EE#®)
7.4 BERZE(E)

7.5

SBETARETITHEEBRRE LEAZIMR
% REMFIETVESRIETVER: - IRBAT
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Average training
hours received by
each employee
BNBET

Percentage of
employees received
training

EaEI THZIRE C2IEEBIL

By gender gkl

Male s 1.6 52%

Female z 1.8 48%
100%

By position R AR

Management ERE 0.2 4%

Supervisory staff BEEE 1.4 43%

General staff —fETI 1.8 53%
100%
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7. Employment (Continued) 7. ERE®)

7.5 Training and development (Continued) 7.5 BYRBRE)

W —

7.6 Prevention and control measures for the pandemic 7.6 BB EREHER

While the launch of a number of vaccines for the Coronavirus BEE201 93T EU B AR E I A ([ FE b4 )&=
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") has led to the abatement of the BB - ZIEEMEN - Mt TIEEHEE
pandemic and gradual recovery of production and operation % o BEMIEHIRLATL - 2020F F)E
in both Mainland China and Hong Kong, we continue to stay ANRRE A S B[ & BB 15/ R B E B AN E
vigilant at all time. The “pandemic prevention and control team” IRRATEED - (DB S HIBTES] - 31T
established by our plants in China at the beginning of 2020 as FERART R BE - TSR R R R R E &R
well as the human resources and administration department in BB ITERE -

Hong Kong continue to implement relevant prevention and control
measures under the guideline issued by the local governments,
in an effort to minimise the infection risks and create a healthy
workplace.
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7. EBR#=)
7.6 EiFMEREHERE)

7. Employment (Continued)

7.6 Prevention and control measures for the pandemic

(Continued)

Traffic control and pandemic prevention equipment and
material supply

Every person entering into the office and the plants, including all
employees and visitors, shall take body temperature check and
wear face mask the whole time, and all vehicles entering into the
plants shall be subject to sterilization process. In addition, the
Group has provided employees with face masks, handrub and a
variety of sanitizing products. All staff are also required to wear
face masks at work and keep social distance as much as possible.

ATGERE - BERRIER Y i (R IE

MAEARAERBEHEEAL 838 T
MR MABBERBREREZME D
B MAEABRNER  LARIHESR
B IMEBRBTRHTOS EF R
BRHSERM  THREET LR VARE
ASRESRITHRIER -

Enhancement of hygiene and cleanliness

Public areas and facilities are subject to regular cleaning
and sterilisation every day, while frequent inspections on the
entrances of drainage pipelines are also arranged. We continue to
impose headcount limit and set up partition on every dining table
for the canteens of our plants in China, with an aim to reduce the
risk of cross-infection.
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7. Employment (Continued) 7. ERE®)
7.6 Prevention and control measures for the pandemic 7.6 FIEMIERELIEREE)

(Continued)
Nucleic acid testing and vaccination VA3 B2k T
Employees who have travelled to or via any high-risk areas, BTN EESBE  EESEAARD
reside in an area where any confirmed cases have been reported REBEZTEMNET(HIM : FETE) - &%
or in his/her own opinion believe necessary (for instance, not TS B, R AR AET o 1t
feeling well) are required to take nucleic acid testing and are N AWERSEE R FERRNBEEIIENR
only allowed to resume work after presenting a negative testing = ORMTHE T S BATRA MR R S R K
result. In addition, in order to protect employees from infection AP T AR BL B, o

by patients without symptoms and provide convenience for
employees of our plants in China, we have arranged medical staff
from hospitals authorised by the government to conduct sweeping
nucleic acid testing for the employees in our plants.

In order to encourage the employees to participate in vaccination AEEETITEREE  BESRLANHKS -
and reduce the risk of infection, our companies in Hong Kong EERNBLBEABRBEET THERZH - B8
and plants in China have made some special arrangements, BEIRBRERAUZE —HEHFBRUMERK
including offering employees in Hong Kong one paid day’s leave 8 BAMEEEMBFAE  THHEBEE

after vaccination, and providing transportation services for the FEETRRERLERSEE -
employees to the designated vaccination center by the plants in
China through cooperation with the local governments.
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Employment (continued)

7.6 Prevention and control measures for the pandemic

(Continued)

Staff care and pandemic reporting and information
dissemination

If any employee does not feel well, we shall assign vehicles
and personnel to take them to the hospital and offer support.
Employees are required to report the areas they visit during the
holidays and vacations, so as to have an understanding of their
travel track and reduces the risks. In addition, the Company
also publishes updates on the Group’s pandemic prevention
arrangement and circulates hygiene knowledge and pandemic
prevention information to its employees in China and Hong Kong
via notice and social media platforms.

As of the date of this report, the Group recorded “zero” infection
case. We will continue to watch closely the development of the
pandemic and endeavor to minimise the impact of the pandemic
on our operation.

8. Operations governance

8.1 Supply chain management

The Group puts a high premium on supplier management. We
have formulated procedures on purchasing control and supplier
management for the headsets and headphones business which
is designed to manage the suppliers in respect of quality,
delivery time, cost, services and safety, etc. We carry out strict
assessment on the new suppliers before acceptance of such
supplies to ensure they satisfy the requirements on quality
control, environmental management, green product management,
social responsibility, labour force, intellectual property rights
management, product safety and anti-terrorism, so as to prevent
their operations from having negative impacts on the environment
and society. In response to the impact of the pandemic on the
global supply chain, the Group has prepared raw materials in
advance as required by the customers, and has established further
partnerships with suppliers to fulfill customer orders.
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8. Operations governance (Continued)

8.1 Supply chain management (Continued)

Information on suppliers of the Headsets and Headphones Plant
by geography is as follows:

g 11

HEmEE
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8. EE

8.1

No. of suppliers
397

= 3

RE-HERERRSE

[-== V2N
B /A

(%)
HEE@EEE (&)

NI RE#EBREERIDRE S HENNE
I

= 323 Mainland China # Bl A tth

= 57 Hong Kong &%

= 6Taiwan &2

=

11 Other regions Lt i

8.2 Product liabilities

The Group is committed to providing premium and safe products
with reliable and consistent quality to customers. We have
developed the “Guidelines for Monitoring of Environmental Impact
of Products and Materials” for the headsets and headphones
business, with an aim to effectively monitor if the products and
materials used in the business activities satisfy international
requirement of “Hazardous Substances Free” ("HSF"). Regarding
new products and equipment, we will apply for environmental
tests so as to ensure they meet various environmental protection
requirements of customers.

We have obtained 1S09001:2015 & IATF16949:2016
Quality Management System Certification and obtained the
1S014001:2015 Environmental Management System Certification
and QC080000:2017 Hazardous Substance Process Management
System Certification, which demonstrated the achievement in
hazardous substance management and the improvement in green
product management made by the Group. In the year, no product
was mandatorily recalled due to safety and health issues (2020:
Nil).
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8. Operations governance (Continued)

8.2 Product liabilities (Continued)
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8.3 Service responsibility

The Group attaches importance to customers’ feedback and
opinions. Follow-up measures are taken and responses are given
regarding substandard products or customer complaints. In
accordance with the procedures as set out in the “Guidelines for
Handling Customer Complaints” of our headsets and headphones
business, we will get an understanding of the actual circumstance
on which a customer complains, and will handle such complaint in
a timely and efficient manner, so as to constantly improve product
quality and enhance customer satisfaction. During the year, we
received 1 customer complaint (2020: 1 customer complaint). In
the future, we will continue to reduce response time regarding
market feedback for better adaptation to the changeable market
condition.
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8. Operations governance (Continued) 8. EEER®)

8.3 Service responsibility (Continued) 8.3 RBEME &)

In respect of intellectual property rights protection, the Group's
intellectual property rights policy is in compliance with the
Enterprise Intellectual Property Management (GB/T 29490-2013),
Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the PRC and regulates
implementation, maintenance and continuous improvement of the
Group's management on intellectual property rights. The Group,
on the one hand, has established sound confidentiality system and
management procedures, such as the “New Product Introduction
Procedure”, the “Guidelines for Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights”, the “Guidelines for Comprehensive Sample
Management”, the “Guidelines for Employee Confidentiality
Agreement”, the "Guidelines for Comprehensive Security
Operation”, the “Documentation Control Procedures” as well
as professional document transmission control and management
systems etc., which have been strictly applied to Headsets
and Headphones business operation; On the other hand, the
Group abides by the laws and regulations of every country and
international organization in relation to protection of intellectual
property rights, so as to prevent unauthorised use of intellectual
property rights of any third party on our products. The measures
implemented by the Group are as follows:

1. Centralised product design: Product design is carried out
by one single department other than by various business
groups, enabling centralised management of the process by
design staff and also facilitating unified protection of design
information via single server.

2. Encrypted management of technological information:
Utilization of professional file encryption software such as
E-Lock to prevent unauthorised divulgence of technological
information.

3. Development of approval process for transmission of
technological information: In order to prevent unauthorised
file transmission, the rights of the author of technological
information, the approver for file transmission and the
operator of file transmission shall be separated, and the
technological information which have been approved
for transmission shall only be transmitted by authorized
operator via designated channel through point-to-point
encryption means.
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8. Operations governance (Continued)

8.3 Service responsibility (Continued)

4.

Sample management: In addition to the “Guidelines for
Comprehensive Sample Management”, the Group has
assigned a dedicated code for each sample for management
of the physical product samples, so as to ensure traceable
management record for each physical sample to prevent
unauthorised leakage of products.

Implementation of employee confidentiality agreement
system: Every employee who may have access to confidential
technological information shall sign the "Employee
Confidentiality Agreement”, under which they are obligated
and responsible for keeping confidential the product
information and trade secrets of the Group.

Product design premises including the research and
development department and the offices of various business
units are under around-the-clock closed circuit television
surveillance.

For quotation evaluation before introduction of a new
project, infringement on intellectual property rights of
any third party is one of the important evaluation criteria.
During the research and development of new product
project, the senior design engineer and product development
manager will conduct patent examination, so as to ensure
that the application of patented technology in relation to
our products is in compliance with the requirements of the
laws and regulations.

The above-mentioned procedures and management systems
as well as the operation equipment are running well, showing
satisfactory control results.
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8. Operations governance (Continued) 8. EEER®)

8.4 Anti-corruption 84 REE

The Group always upholds the principle of “honesty, integrity
and fairness”, abides by the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”,
adopts a zero tolerance policy for any form of bribery and
corruption, and requires all Directors and employees to comply
with the laws and company policy guidelines and business
ethics. Any kind of bribery and corruption activities are strictly
prohibited. New employees are required to sign the “Confidentiality
and Integrity Agreement” based on their functions, which lists
out relevant anti-bribery policies of the Group.

We have established a mechanism for declaration of interests
and diversified reporting channels, such as reporting suspected
corruption activities to the human resources department in writing
or by email. In addition, we also make every effort to keep
confidential the identity of the informant and to deal with each
case in a fair and prudent manner for the purpose of maintain a
climate of integrity within the Group.

In addition, the Group also promotes message against bribery,
blackmail, fraud and money laundering through means such as
orientation, internal newsletters and notice board, so as to update
employees’ knowledge of anti-corruption and keep them always
vigilant against such practices. We regularly invite representatives
from the Procuratorate of China and Independent Commission
Against Corruption of Hong Kong (“ICAC") to deliver lectures on
anti-corruption for our employees in China and Hong Kong, with
an aim to further improve and strengthen their anti-corruption
awareness. There was no case of bribery and corruption in the
Group during the year.
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Community caring

The Group has always adhered to its core value of “We, as a corporate

citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity of our society”. The
has also fulfilled our corporate social responsibility and made an

Group
active

effort to engage in community services. The Group has participated in

or organised different charity activities every year to help people in
need and worked together to build a caring and harmonious society.
For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has made total donations

amounting to HK$101,000 (2020: HK$151,000).

9.1 Career guidance for students

Local talents play essential roles in promoting social development

and community sustainability. Therefore, we cooperate with
different agencies and arrange summer internships for young
people each year, giving them first-hand experience of a real-
life work situation and inspiring them to identify their future
career paths. Unexpectedly, relevant agencies had to suspend the
exchange program this year due to the outbreak of the pandemic.
When the situation permits in the coming year, we will continue
the internship program to play a part in cultivating young talents.

In addition, we have been sponsoring the “Future Star - Upward
Mobility Scholarship” initiated by the Commission on Poverty
to offer incentives to young people who remain progressive and
positive in the hardship. The program is aimed to enhance upward

mobility of young people who lack resources and opportunities,

so as to help them improve their living environment.
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9. BEHE®)
9.2 ML

9. Community caring (Continued)

9.2 Engagement in public welfare

Our staff are dedicated to public welfare and have participated in
charity activities for many years. Although several charity events
have been cancelled this year due to the pandemic, the Group
continued to make donations, including Yan Chai Charity Walk
2020, to help the group and people in need.

This year, the Fujikon Volunteer Team was also unable to visit
the community due to the pandemic, while the Group still made
donations to the "Mid-Autumn Festival Elderly Care Programme
2020" organised by Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service,
to offer the elderly gift packages to celebrate the Mid-Autumn
Festival. We plan to expand our volunteer team next year, and
encourage employees, together with their family members, to
participate in more community services, with an aim to make
greater contribution to the community.

The Group was once again accredited the “Caring Company 10
Years plus” and the “Industry Cares 5 Years Plus” logos this year
in recognition of our contribution to the community for years,
which also demonstrated the Group’s good corporate image of
proactively participating in community activities and fulfilling the
commitment of “We, as a corporate citizen, devote ourselves to
the prosperity of our society”.
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10. ESG Awards and certificates 10. KM MVESGHE1E R Rk
10.1Employment relationship awards 10.1{E BB R B IR 1R
Awards Issuing agency
RIEEE HEEE
2020 Happy Company Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council
R0 T ¥ERI2020 BEREREEBESNEBLEENRER
Good Employer Charter 2020 Labour Department
4B E#952020 T
10.2Society contribution awards 10.2- S BRI RE
Awards Issuing agency
BIHEW I A
Caring Certificates of "Industry Cares" 2020 Federation of Hong Kong Industries
[ TZEBAE D 120208 0 B 15 42 BERIEESY
Caring Company 2020-2021 The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
7 57 R B 12020-2021 FEMERGHBE
Social Capital Builder (SCB) Awards 2018-2020 Community Investment & Inclusion Fund, Labour and
Welfare Bureau
& & A E) 1 422018-2020 BIREIRBHEREXAES
10.3 Certificate of appreciation 10.3 RS 4R
Awards Issuing agency
HE AW A HE
Future Star 2020 Commission on Poverty
Bl H .2 £2020 KEZRE®
Yan Chai Charity Walk 2020 Yan Chai Hospital
CE#&AETT2020 CEER
Mid-Autumn Festival Elderly Care Programme 2020 Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service - Choi Hung
Community Centre for Senior Citizen
R0\ B8 1R 2 7K 2020 REHEBEVIREGSRET O
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& 3L B Eh 3R &

B
pwec s Rk i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HELSEXEZERERATRRE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFMEIHBERAR)
Opinion 2R

What we have audited EMEBTHAR

The consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the BT oSEX£EBRERAT(ATHEBIEAR])ME
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 158, MIBARI (A THMEI SEE |)FEHNFE86E158E &Y
which comprise: REMBHE - BIE

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021; o FN02E3BNBEMGABMBANE

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then o EHEZBIFFERNGAEZEKRER
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; e HEZRAIFEMGEERZHE -
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and e HEZAILFEMGERERERK

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a o #(ABBRENT  BETESHHERE -
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion EMWER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view HfIRAE @ ZEHAU KRR BREBT LS
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of EBEMAKEEUBEREENNEEMP SR T
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the ~E&EER20216F3 A3 BNGA P ERA L EHREZ
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards B IFFENGAMERARGARERE Y BEE
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants  BRE SR BHEHI YR 5B 48 & 2 AHHE -
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

£45 20202021 19 EBELEREZERERLT



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Net realisable value of inventories

o Impairment of trade receivables

80
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

REETER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESNAEERRENSE

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to Notes 4(a) and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, inventories of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$141.1 million. As
described in the accounting policies in Note 2.10 to
the consolidated financial statements, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in determining the
appropriate provision for obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below cost. Net
realisable value is determined based upon a detailed
analysis of inventories aging, with reference to the
current marketability and latest selling prices of the
relevant inventories and the current market conditions
existing at the end of the year. For the year ended
31 March 2021, reversal of provision for inventories
amounted to approximately HK$5.6 million.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
balances and the judgment and estimates involved by
management in determining the net realisable value of
the inventories.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net realisable value
of inventories included:

—  We understood and evaluated management’s internal control and
assessment process of provision for inventories and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors associated with this
accounting estimated, and validated the effectiveness of key controls on
a sample basis.

—  We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventories aging used by
management to estimate the appropriate provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

—  We performed analyses on inventories movement data to identify
inventories with indication of slow moving or obsolescence.

—  We reviewed the utilisation of raw materials, and completion of work-
in-progress, subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to assess the
appropriateness of the associated provision made, if any.

—  We compared the carrying amounts of finished goods, on a sample
basis, to their net realisable values through a detailed review of sales
subsequent to the year end to check for completeness of the associated
provision. Where there are no subsequent sales of the respective finished
goods after the year end, we challenged management as to the realisable
values of the finished goods, corroborating explanations with the aging,
sales orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
finished goods, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgment and estimates
made by management in relation to assessment of net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREAEE

RREETER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
R FT A EERREETEE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to Notes 4(b) and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$131.9 million with
provision for loss allowance of approximately HK$2.2
million. Provision is made for lifetime expected credit
losses on trade receivables.

Management applied judgment in determining the
appropriate loss allowance on trade receivables. Trade
receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection are
assessed individually for provision for loss allowance.
Expected credit losses are estimated by grouping the
remaining trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customers, their geographical locations and their
ageing categories, and applying expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the
trade receivables. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience with an adjustment to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
balances and the judgment and estimates involved by
management in determining the expected credit loss
allowance of the trade receivables.
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Our procedures in relation to management’'s assessment of provision for
loss allowance on trade receivables included:

We understood and evaluated the management'’s internal control and
assessment process of provision for trade receivables and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
associated with this accounting estimate, and tested on a sample
basis, management’s key control over the assessment of recoverability
of trade receivable balances and the related loss allowance, including
periodic review on trade receivables aging, historical loss rates and
approval of provision made.

We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
loss allowance.

We obtained management’s assessment of the expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables and assessed the reasonableness of
the expected loss rates. We corroborated and validated management'’s
assessment based on the historical settlement pattern and
correspondence with the customers.

We assessed management’s assessment of current market condition
and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors by
comparing the data used by management against publicly available
information.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s calculation
for loss allowance of trade receivables.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgment and estimates
made by management in relation to assessment of loss allowance on trade
receivables to be supportable by available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRIAR

As at 31 March 2021
720213 A31H

Note 2021 2020
B 5 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE MR 6 97,861 113,119
Investment property BEME 7 1,500 1,500
Right-of-use assets EREEE . 8 27,079 24,419
Non-current deposits and other assets EnEEe MEMEE 2,085 2,417
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEAEMEE
other comprehensive income R EE 9 4,208 4,063
Deferred income tax assets BREFTEHEE 16 7,684 8,543
_Total non-currentassets  FABAERE 10407 154,061
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 11 141,090 172,582
Trade receivables JEWE 7R 12 129,700 168,276
Other receivables Hpglsom 12 23,028 30,021
Financial assets at fair value through RRAFETABED
profit or loss A7 & 13 1,423 1,448
Current income tax recoverable AJ U [l & BA TS 70 6,365 316
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 14 487,350 421,768
Total currentassets *BA=EeE EEEED 794011
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables RNER 15 94,808 108,809
Contract liabilities, accruals and other EHEE - EAERR
payables H A & < 5RIE 15 84,967 106,429
Lease liabilities HERE 6,511 6,880
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHAaE 11,232 4,714
_Total current liabilitles __________ _‘BAEeE . T . 226,832
_Netcurrentassets _ RBRE¥E 591,438 567,579
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 731,855 721,640
Non-current liabilities 'a'F/ﬁEﬁﬁF
Lease liabilities * =N 7,177 3,940
Deferred income tax liabilities Lﬁﬁ SHERE 16 891 1,825
_Total non-current liabilities ____ Em@AEeE 8,068 . 5765
Net assets EEFEE 723,787 715,875
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to the BEAATREREEAZ
Company's equity holders B R &
Share capital &N 17 42,584 42,584
Other reserves HAth # 19 169,407 151,280
Retained earnings & Ea/ﬁnﬂ
— Proposed dividends B AR B 25 12,775 12,775
— Others — = 436,317 443,613
661,083 650,252
Non-controlling interests AT 62,704 65,623
Total equity EZES 723,787 715,875
The financial statements on pages 86 to 158 were approved by the Board of  #{/A5586% 1588  F %:ZEEAZONEGHZZEM%

Directors on 22 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
B

Chairman

*E

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.

B 765 7R 50 3R R 8 B P = — G BB -

Espukose)

R T AR

75
EEERETKBATETHAERSE
YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

Jomt Deputy Chairman

I Bl
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE2021F3A318ILFE
Note 2021 2020
B 5T HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 20 890,820 1,250,173
Cost of sales HERAR (717,784) (1,007,807)
Gross profit EF 173,036 242,366
Other (losses)/gains — net Hih (E518), W — %58 21 (16,188) 1,433
Distribution and selling expenses DEERHE ST (8,080) (9,789)
General and administrative expenses —MRATHE W (124,252) (163,735)
Reversal of provision/(provision) for impairment e & FORME B m
of trade receivables (BE) 5,193 (5,067)
Operating profit BEORF 22 29,709 65,208
Finance income — net REEWA —FEE 23 3,337 4,720
Profit before income tax BRETEB ANRR 33,046 69,928
Income tax expenses FrfS i i 24 (12,660) (18,047)
Profit for the year FREA 20,386 51,881
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2wk
Items that have been reclassified or may be EE# 7 He B Al iR E
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: o R B 2 HE -
— Currency translation differences —EHER 27,580 (23,987)
— Fair value gains on financial assets at —BRAFEFAEMEER
fair value through other comprehensive W EE 2
income NEERE 9 145 84
— Release of exchange reserve upon — o 3H T A B PTRR R
deregistration of a subsidiary 2T (4,207) =
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREM2E RS
Cometoftax ] BHBERR . Bsws (23.903)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKRSER 43,904 27,978
Profit attributable to: BHEE
Equity holders of the Company RARIERERE A 10,266 28,991
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR A 10,120 22,890
20,386 51,881
Total comprehensive income attributable to: ZHWNREERE .
Equity holders of the Company RAEIRERE A 32,123 6,968
Non-controlling interests FE4EE Il 1 M 2 11,781 21,010
43,904 27,978
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the FAREA LD RAIRERFE A
equity holders of the Company for the year: ZmMHSREN
— Basic (HK cents per share) — EAR(FREW) 26 2.4 6.8
- Diluted (HK cents per share) —EE(SRBIL) 26 2.4 6.8

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEHEREBIR

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZE202143A31BILFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

BEREARREREA
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  reserves  earnings interests equity
I
FitzE BA  HitRs REEH Bx  ERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2019 20194818 42,584 171,771 458,738 61,763 734,856
Profit for the year FAEF - - 28,991 22,890 51,881
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2 mE s
— Currency translation differences —ERERE 19 = (22,107) = (1,880)  (23,987)
~ Fair value gains on financial assets —BATEFAEMEE
at fair value through other BRI BEEL
comprehensive income AT EKE 19 - 84 - - 84
Total comprehensive income for the year HZE2020F3R31BLEFE
ended 31 March 2020 2ENEBE - (22,023) 28,991 21,010 27,978
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: BAENERAE D
ETHNRS
Employee share option scheme: EEBRENE
— Lapse of share options — BB 19 = (16) 16 - -
Appropriation of statutory reserve BRZLTRHE 19 - 1,548 (1,548) - -
Dividends paid ERARE - - (298090  (17,150)  (46,959)
At 31 March 2020 #202063A31H 42,584 151,280 456,388 65,623 715,875
Profit for the year FRRF - - 10,266 10,120 20,386
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2 Eas
- Currency translation differences —ERER 19 = 25,919 - 1,661 27,580
- Fair value gains on financial assets —BATEFARMEE
at fair value through other YRR BEE
comprehensive income NFEKE 19 - 145 - - 145
— Release of reserves upon deregistration — T SH M B A R PT AR BR
of a subsidiary VA1 ] 19 - (7,711) 3,564 - (4,207)
Total comprehensive income for the year BZE2021F3RA31BLLEE
ended 31 March 2021 TENEER - 18293 13830 11,781 43,904
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: BREENEREES D
ETHRS
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE -
~ Lapse of share options —BRERN 19 - (166) 166 - -
Dividends paid BAKE - - (21,292)  (14,700)  (35,992)
At 31 March 2021 ®202143H31H 42,584 169,407 449,092 62,704 723,781

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.

bR A R AR B B 5K e L BE P Y B — BFBOAE o

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 88

Annual Report 2020/2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE2021F3A31HIEFE
Note 2021 2020
L HK$ 000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RETDHRERE
Cash generated from operations REEBHE2HE 29(a) 117,256 251,481
Interest paid BARFE (12) (59)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNBEBEREH (11,597) (12,841)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREBBNEH 44 1,009
Withholding tax on dividends paid 2R ST = (1,389)
China corporate income tax paid EHEP B FTISH (1,631) (7,752)
China corporate income tax refunded RERBEPEMEH 1,071 985
Net cash generated from operating activities %<</Ej§pﬁﬁziii/$ﬁﬁ 77777777777777777777777 105131 231,434
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEESRE
Interest received EUAIE 2,709 5,064
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAME - BEMEE (8,181) (20,432)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and LEME - BE R&E
equipment Fr5 78 502 270
Increase in non-current deposits FETR BN IR S 38 hN (624) (336)
Net cash used in investing activites RAGBMAZREFE (5.594) (15,434)
Cash flows from financing activities METHESRE
Proceeds from borrowings EESRIE 29(b) - 10,000
Repayment of borrowings EBEEE 29(b) - (10,000)
Principal elements of lease payments HENZzAIH D 29(b) (7,789) (7,902)
Interest portion of lease liabilities HEBRZIEID 29(b) (222) (406)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests EENEEYESVNGIE 2 T
in a subsidiary a2 IR 29(b) (14,700) (17,150)
Dividends paid to the Company’s equity ERAREIREREA
holders 2B 29(b) (21,292) (29,809)
_Net cash used in financing activities MARBMAZREFE (44,003) (55.267)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBASESEYEZMTFRE 55,534 160,733
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents  R& MRS EEWMER =5 10,048 (2,102)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ F#R & KRS ZEEYD 421,768 263,137
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRESEEY 14 487,350 421,768

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M 15 3R 3R Mt 5

General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment property, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE B RR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2 FEEFBRME #)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)

(a) Amended standards and conceptual framework (a) AEERMZLETEIRBE
adopted by the Group 3
The Group has applied the following amended standards and N5 [E 7020205F4 A1 B e 2 B A
conceptual framework for the first time for its financial year EBHRERNATRIEFTER R
commencing on 1 April 2020: HEZE :
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a business
BB RGN B35 (BFTA) EB2ERE
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Interest rate benchmark reform
BABMBRERERFER - BAESHERE3NR R F =B AR

B BRELRNETHR(EFTA)

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of material
BB ENFEIREBB S ERFESHE (BFTA) ERAZTEE

Conceptual framework for financial reporting 2018 Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting

BA TSR 5 B 1E 222018 BIERT 2 TS E B AER

The adoption of these amended standards and conceptual BN ZF R ERTER RS ER Y
framework did not have any material impact on the Group's AEE A M EMBERR2
consolidated financial statements for the current period or any mEMBmRTEAMENALER
prior period and is not likely to affect future periods. PR E AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B R R M R

2 FESTHHREME®)
2.1 REEEE)
(b) THEMEMKE R EBIR DR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations

to standards and annual improvements
(collectively the “Amendments”) which have
been issued but are not yet effective and not
early adopted

The following Amendments have been issued, but are not
effective for the Group's financial year beginning on or after 1
April 2020 and have not been early adopted in preparing these

ZHATRGETER R 2RE
R FEBGE (S ERT A D)

LNTERIAREEM MR AEE
2000F4 1A 2 B AR 2 BT IE
ERMARERERERZESETE

consolidated financial statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BRI BImE L] (BFIA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BRI B EmE LR E3R(BFIAR)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

B BREERNFIR - BALFEAIFE395 -
ERVBREELETS BEPBHREELEIH R
BRI BREELE165 (BFIAR)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

ERAPBREENF10RRE LG ERF8K (BTA)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

AR BHREERF165R(BRIA)

HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

BB HmEER B TR R B BT HREERFE175
CCHEN

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BB EMNER(ETA)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments)

BREGENEIRRBENBRELENERREE 2%
CCHEN)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
BER G EAESH (BF]A)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)
BB EFE165 (BF]A)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)
BB EREITHR(BF]A)

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5
EREEEIE Liva Tl

HK Int 5 (2020)

2 EE55E(20204F)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

WA AR F RN

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle®
ERPEIREER2018F £2020FBH 2 FEBUE?

Reference to the conceptual framework?
BSER 2 =it

Interest rate benchmark reform — Phase 22

RS Rl 12 C

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture®

REEZEERHMENRRAERFZLAZEELERKAS

Covid-19 — Related rent concessions'
Covid-19 — 1 2 H € Rl &

Insurance contracts*

REEE 4

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current*
MBS IEME A E DR

Disclosure of accounting policies*

HBERE

Definition of accounting estimates*

Bitfhat 2R

Proceeds before intended use’
¥E R Al 2 P15 50083

Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract?

BRIESHN - BITAHAKA

Merger accounting for common control combinations?
HREZEHE Mz aotEE

Presentation of financial statements — Classification by the borrower
of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause*

PBHRE 2 - EFRABEAREREER I ERERZ DB
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations
to standards and annual improvements
(collectively the “Amendments”) which have
been issued but are not yet effective and not
early adopted (Continued)

! Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 June 2020

F2020F 6 A1 Bk 2 & FtE 2 BIFE - AR

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2021

F2021F1 A1 B2 &% 2 BRFEE B ER

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2022

20221 A1 B2 &G 2 BRFEE B AR

< Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2023

F2023F1 A1 B 2 &G 2 BRFEE B AR

e No mandatory effective date yet determined

170 R 7 E 58 i) A 2 B B

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these Amendments upon initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether these Amendments would
have any significant impact on its results of operations and
financial positions.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

2.3

Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the Company’s standalone financial statements, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(the “CODM"). CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who collectively make strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income presented are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)
(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference
is reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5% to 8'/3%
Machinery and moulds 10% to 50%
Furniture and equipment 20% to 30%
Motor vehicles 30%

Buildings

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
“other (losses)/gains — net”, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairments
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows which are largely independent of the cash inflow from other
assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“OCI") or through
profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.8 MBEEE)

(b)

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(c) Measurement

(c)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are

expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

(i) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in “other (losses)/
gains — net” together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued) ()

(i) Debt instruments (Continued)

(i)

EETA(E)

e FVOCI: o BN TFEFAHEMEPENK
Assets that are held for collection of contractual BHEREEGHORERER

cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
(losses)/gains — net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “other
(losses)/gains — net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group's management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(c)

(d) Impairment

(d)

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, details

are disclosed in Note 12.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,

such as bankruptcy of the termination of a contract.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.11Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group's
accounting for trade receivables and impairment policies are
disclosed in Note 2.8.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

2.13Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods or services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.14Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the jurisdictions where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans
in Hong Kong and China. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FERFHBRBME2)
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2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

When the options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of merchandise

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Sales of merchandise (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered, as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. Substantially all of the Group’s revenue are
recognised at a point in time during the year.

Deposits collected from the customers before product delivery
are recognised as contract liabilities.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(c) Management fees income

Management fees income is recognised over time as
management service is rendered.

(d) Handling income

Handling income is recognised when the Group satisfied the
performance obligation in accordance with the substance of
relevant agreements. Invoices are generated and revenue is
recognised at that point in time.

(e) Rental income

Rental income is recognised over time as rental service is
rendered.

2.20 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed
for expected credit losses in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 3.1(b) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable; and

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; and
e any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their nature.
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.22 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured
at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (“HKFRS 9");
and

e  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (“HKFRS 15").
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22Financial guarantees (Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
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Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of

Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollars (“USD"). The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate.

In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk, the Group
has been closely monitoring its foreign currency exposure
and requirements and will arrange for any foreign
exchange forward contracts if necessary. There was no
outstanding foreign exchange forward contract as at 31
March 2021 and 2020.

At 31 March 2021, if HKD/USD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2020: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,193,000 higher/
lower (2020: HK$61,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses (2020: losses/gains)
on net impact on translation of RMB-denominated net
monetary assets of subsidiaries in Hong Kong and HKD/
USD-denominated net monetary assets of subsidiaries in
China.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group's investment bonds, listed securities and
investment fund are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. Management
considered that the exposure of investment bonds,
listed securities and investment fund to price risk is not
significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group generally does not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets.

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and contract assets, other receivables, and
financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI, arises from potential
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, substantially all cash and
bank deposits are placed with major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and China which management
believes are of high credit quality. Management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

(ii)

Risk management (Continued)

The credit risk of debtors is managed by a credit
evaluation process which includes assessment and
evaluation of existing and potential customers’ credit
standing to determine the credit limits to be granted,
credit policies, credit control and collection procedures.
Payments are monitored for compliance with credit
terms.

Credit risk of FVPL and FVOCI is considered minimal.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on similar
risk characteristics and, collectively or individually,
assessing them for likelihood of recovery. The contract
assets have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

e Measurement of expected credit loss on individual
basis

For trade receivables relating to accounts in which
there are objective evidence that the debtor faces
significant financial difficulties or enter liquidation,
they are assessed individually for impairment
allowance. Accordingly, loss allowance of
HK$2,098,000 was made as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$7,399,000).
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(b) EERKE)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

e Measurement of expected credit loss on collective

basis

The Group categorises its trade receivables and
contract assets, except those individually assessed,
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales over a
period of 36 months before 31 March 2021 and
2020 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to

settle the receivables and contract assets.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as a separate line in the profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same

line item.

As at 31 March 2021, the loss allowance for trade
receivables assessed collectively is HK$109,000

(2020: Nil).

Debt instruments

All of the entity's debt instruments at FVOCI are
considered to have low credit risk. Instruments are
considered to be low credit risk when they have a low
risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near

term.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The credit quality of other receivables has been assessed
with reference to historical information about the
counterparties’ default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion that the
credit risk of other receivables is low due to the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of other receivables
is assessed to be close to zero and no provision was

made as of 31 March 2021.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains a
healthy level of liquid assets and committed banking facilities
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2021, the Group has
unutilised committed banking facilities of HK$159,045,000
(2020: HK$160,600,000).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining periods
of which at the end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 BM¥EREE®)
3.1 MBEBREEZ)

(c)

FE R
FEEMNRDERBREEEEZAR
MRS MIEEES  BBEER
CEMECZRABEHRBEES M
BRNEBEEMSFE - ERNHBEE
BZERZEEE  RWAEEBS
BROEAENARAEEEESRRFE
SHBEEME -

AEBFEBREFSAEEEEEE -
BE BERRFAEZRBESEE
ZEELER  FERERERHE
T AKENBRBEE KD A
HIRITEERERERIBREKTE
NERBERHREREMERNBSE
XBBEPROHEREERZRE®
=T 2021538318 AEEZ
AACAFNRITEERER
159,045,000 7T (2020 160,600,000 7T ) ©

TEREBARE W BRABRRSE
HEAERBESHI A 2 TH
Mo BR=HENMBARNELD
o RPEABEESERALNRUR

AN — =
BHEME °

Within 1 year 1-2 years Total
15X 1225 A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 31 March 2021 7202163 831H
Trade and other payables JEASH & 3k K A A5 SRR 101,799 - 101,799
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,704 7,267 13,971
108,503 7,267 115,770

At 31 March 2020 7"202053A31H
Trade and other payables JE ST 3R e LA e A 5K IE 122,295 = 122,295
Lease liabilities HEBE 7,088 4,022 11,110
129,383 4,022 133,405
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group was at the net cash
position.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of the Group's assets and liabilities are classified into
3 levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy prescribed under
the accounting standards and disclosed as below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2021.

EERERE®)
3.3 AF@EMGE(E)

TR EF)ARNEER2021F3 431 BIZ A F
B E22MIEEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FR H24 B34 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL AT ESAERY
B AR
— Listed equity securities and — TR EEFEAEL
investment fund RS 1,423 - - 1,423
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAFEGFAHME
Hl ez M EE
— Corporate bonds —EES - 4,208 - 4,208
Total 4a= 1,423 4,208 - 5,631

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2020.

TR 25 ARNEER2020F3 A31HIZAF
B2 2 MEEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 F2R F3% M5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BRAFESFABZEY
MEEE
— Listed equity securities and — I TTREEAE R
el BEES 1,448 = = 1,448
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFESFAREME
sz B E
— Corporate bonds —EEE - 4,063 - 4,063
Total Bt 1,448 4,063 - 5,511

WERMSEEZEMTA(NRAREER
ZUTETARBEERAFHERS)ZA
FEASMBEMRAKREEBNTHERE - K
SEMBFMBEEMBZTSRERER
BAE-

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There was no transfer of financial assets between Level 1 and Level
2 during the year.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated loss allowance for trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

()

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) whether
appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing cash flow
projections including using an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in the impairment
assessment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to charge
an impairment loss to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(Continued)
(e) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject to
management’s estimates that the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries.

Segment information

CODM has been identified as the executive directors. CODM reviews
the Group’s internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B REK MR

Segment information (Continued) DEER#)
Headsets and Accessories
headphones and components Elimination Total
ERERREEEH BHREH : @t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Seqment revenue PEMA
- External revenue —¥oMIA 646,967 913,816 243,853 336,357 - - 890,820 1,250,173
- Inter-segment revenue - FHEBA - - 24,935 38,984 (24,935) (38,984) = =
Total Wt 646,967 913,816 268,788 375,341 (24,935) (38,984) 890,820 1,250,173
Seqment results PEEE 25,479 15,918 25,307 52,413 - = 50,786 68,331
Corporate expenses TETH (4,889) (4,556)
Other (losses)/gains - net Efh(E5iR),/
K — %8 (16,188) 1433
Finance income - net BEWA -5 3,331 4720
Profit before income tax BRETERATER] 33,046 69,928
Other segment information: HiHHER
Depreciation of property, plant  ¥% » FiE 12
and equipment RELIE 23,569 25,106 8,598 9,165 - - 32,167 34,71
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEE 2 & 1,610 1,607 6,688 6,965 - = 8,298 8572
(Reversal of provision)/provision for R ([E1%) /&l
inventory obsolescence (5,399) 13,108 (184) 3,142 = - (5,583) 16,250
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FEUTE& ZusE
impairment of trade receivables ([ /#/& (5,173) 5,030 (20) 37 = - (5,193) 5,067
Additions to non-current assets  FEjE B ARSI
(other than financial instruments (2B T AR
and deferred income tax assets)  EIEFTEH
BEIN) 7,586 15,189 12,144 8,328 = - 19,730 23,517

For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenues of approximately
HK$639,475,000 (2020: HK$921,654,000) were derived from three
(2020: three) customers, amounting to approximately HK$303,428,000,
HK$171,630,000 and HK$164,417,000 respectively, which individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue. These revenues
consisted of approximately HK$484,220,000 (2020: HK$645,157,000)
and HK$155,255,000 (2020: HK$276,497,000) attributable to headsets
and headphones segment and accessories and components segment
respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue from external
customers attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2021
was approximately HK$844,205,000 (2020: HK$1,181,480,000), and the
total revenue from external customers from China was approximately
HK$46,615,000 (2020: HK$68,693,000).

At 31 March 2021, the total non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and
China were approximately HK$24,821,000 (2020: HK$28,267,000) and
HK$103,704,000 (2020: HK$113,188,000) respectively.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

#H 220213 H31H IEF [+ #9639,475,0007%
70(2020 : 921,654,000/ 70 ) Z WA Th 3R B =
#(2020 : =R)EF - 954 /5303,428,0007%
7T+ 171,630,000/% 7T 164,417,000 ¢ © & H
M AREE 40 A10% A E o H F149484,220,000
7 71.(2020 : 645,157,0007 7T ) £2155,255,0007%
76(2020 : 276,497,00078 7T ) 70 Bl /& 20 bk B 1% &
HEERO AR HEREGSF WA -

RKRBIABREEEN - B £2021F3A318 1
FERBEBZHINEF WAL £844,205,000
¥ 71,(2020 : 1,181,480,0005 7t ) » i K B +
Bz 5N B U A 42 %8 49 546,615,000 JT
(2020 : 68,693,000/ 7T ) °

R2021F3 8318 e @m T A RBELEMEH
BEN MRBEERFRZIERDEELED
Bl 49 £24,821,0007% 7T (2020 : 28,267,000/ 7T )
1%2103,704,0005% 7. (2020 : 113,188,000/ 7T ) ©
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Property, plant and equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE B RR MR

6 WX HERRHE

Leasehold land Machinery  Furniture and
and buildings and moulds equipment Motor vehicles Total
HELi B B
kEF REER e "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2019 $201954R1H
Cost BAR 173,680 229,120 140,925 19,009 562,734
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFTHTE (95,534) (187,326) (122,110) (15,322) (420,292)
Net book amount REHE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
Year ended EZ2020%3H31H
31 March 2020 LFE
Opening net book amount  FHIEEFE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
Leasehold land reclassified R FRMAEE B B RS2
to right-of-use assets on FIRRENNEER
adoption of HKFRS 16 REEECHELTH (10,633) - = - (10,633)
Opening net book amount, & #IEREF(E
as restated 2] 67,513 41,794 18,815 3,687 131,809
Additions R 1,601 12,684 6,083 2,616 22,984
Disposals HeE = ) (15) = (17)
Depreciation charge NEHX (5,598) (18,200) (8,558) (1,915) (34,27)
Exchange differences [ERER (3,707) (2,661) (969) (49) (7,386)
Closing net book amount  F4ERM FE 59,809 33,615 15,356 4,339 113,119
At 31 March 2020 20204638310
Cost B AR 150,457 227,476 139,300 18,824 536,057
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (90,648) (193,861) (123,944) (14,485) (422,938)
Net book amount REFE 59,809 33,615 15,356 4,339 113,119
Year ended BZ2021%F3A31A
31 March 2021 HEE
Opening net book amount & #NBREF(E 59,809 33,615 15,356 4,339 113,119
Additions R 2,890 2,429 3,613 262 9,194
Disposals HE (433) (246) (35) = (714)
Depreciation charge NERS (5,688) (16,347) (8,025) (2,107) (32,167)
Exchange differences BEH = 4,235 2,972 998 224 8,429
Closing net book amount  FHRIREFE 60,813 22,423 11,907 2,718 97,861
At 31 March 2021 R202153A31H
Cost BN 162,633 238,622 148,310 19,250 568,815
Accumulated depreciation ~ EFTHTE (101,820) (216,199) (136,403) (16,532) (470,954)
Net book amount REFE 60,813 22,423 11,907 2,718 97,861

Depreciation expense of HK$25,387,000 (2020: HK$26,380,000) has been
included in cost of sales and HK$6,780,000 (2020: HK$7,891,000) in

general and administrative expenses.

F 3R 2020/2021

Hr & 7 25,387,000/ 7£(2020 : 26,380,000/
T0) B 49 A A $H5 5 B AN 526,780,000 7T (2020 ¢
7,891,000/ 7T) EM AR — M RITEZ H °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B R R M R

Investment property

7 BREWx

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F9) 1,500 1,400
Fair value gains (Note 21) N EURES (BTEE21) - 100
End of the year FiR 1,500 1,500

For the year ended 31 March 2021, outgoings in respect of investment
property amounted to HK$4,000 (2020: HK$4,000).

The investment property was revalued at 31 March 2021 by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer.
Valuation was based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s interests in investment property
is wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between 10 to 50
years.

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment property
at least annually. In the current year, the valuation is performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer. At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of the property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations. The directors determine a property's value
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available the
directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(ii) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows; or

(iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated
net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an

analysis of market evidence.

The valuation gain is included in "“Other (losses)/gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 21).

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 1 2 6

HE2NE3ANBIULFEE  BEMEZ T
/54,0007 77(2020 : 4,000 7T) ©
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720214 2202093 A31H  AEBERIKE Y
XS EPAREE R N0E50F B4+
ﬁ °

hERE%

AEBELRNEFRERENEZBILHEE -
RAFEE  ABLEXRAERMAEFETA
EMARABETHE REFSHHER
o EFeRKEEROBYGERENRSY
MEAFEZHE - EFHYEREEEREES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE B RR MR

Investment property (Continued) 7 REWE#®)

Valuation basis (Continued) HEEEE)

The following table analyses the investment property carried at fair value TEREFAGEEE D ZIEAFEARZEE
by valuation method: MEZ DT

Fair value hierarchy A EER

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2021 using

R202153A831H 2 A FEFERRA

Quoted prices in Significant other Significant
active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEERNER HitEEAHEE EERTEE
miEZHRE WAE BAE
(%B14R) (%28%) (%#34%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurements & &M A FENE
— Car park space —[FEi5 = 1,500 =

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2020 using

1K2020F3 A31H 2 A EFTEFEHA

Quoted prices in Significant other Significant
active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HREBENER HEMEZAEHEHA BERNAER
M5 2 B {I=1 BAE
(F18) (F28%) (380
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurements & &EEAFEF=
— Car park space —[FEi5 - 1,500 =
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of AREZHRARSHELE AT RSE S
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in REEN - THEIAAFEERZBAREL -
circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RER - BHES1R B2 R B3R 2 HREE -
Level 2 fair values of investment property has been derived using the REMRZ DI AVFEEREELRT A
direct comparison approach, which is based on comparing the property E)?H%ETE#?%E?{I%X%Z?EK}EWEE@EJ
to be valued directly with other comparable properties in close proximity, LB RETERELE -

which have recently transacted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B REK MR

(@)  The Group's interest in leasehold land is located in Hong Kong and held on

leases between 10 to 50 years, and for self-use.

(b)  The land use rights are located in China and held on leases of 50 years, and

for self-use.

()  For the year ended 31 March 2021, the total cash outflow for leases
was HK$8,011,000 (2020: HK$8,308,000) with HK$7,789,000 (2020:
HK$7,902,000) being payments of principal elements and HK$222,000 (2020:

HK$406,000) as payments for interest elements.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

128

(a)

(c)

8 Right-of-use assets 8 FEHEERE
Leasehold Land use
land rights Buildings Total
HELTH LTHEARE BF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Year ended 31 March 2020 B E2020563A31H
LLFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE - = = =
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RME B ISR E 2R
£165% 10,633 3,879 19,617 34,129
Opening net book amount, as restated FUEEFE - K£F5 10,633 3,879 19,617 34,129
Additions BN - - 61 61
Depreciation charge TERX (376) (153) (8,043) (8,572)
Exchange differences IE 5 =58 - (247) (952) (1,199)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 10,257 3,479 10,683 24,419
At 31 March 2020 7202063 A31H
Cost DN 15,520 7,399 18,551 41,470
Accumulated depreciation e i (5,263) (3,920) (7,868) (17,051)
Net book amount BREFE 10,257 3,479 10,683 24,419
Year ended 31 March 2021 B £202143A31H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 10,257 3,479 10,683 24,419
Additions R = - 9,752 9,752
Depreciation charge FrERM S (376) (156) (7,766) (8,298)
Exchange differences bE 5, =5 = 287 919 1,206
Closing net book amount FREREFE 9,881 3,610 13,588 27,079
At 31 March 2021 7M2021%3H31H
Cost XA 15,520 8,022 29,148 52,690
Accumulated depreciation i (5,639) (4,412) (15,560) (25,611)
Net book amount REFE 9,881 3,610 13,588 27,079
Notes: PEE

REBPREE b 2 AN BB ILLA10E50
FHABAREEBERARR -

-t (55 PR AR A A R BN LASOSF TR A0 45 B R AE B
AR e

HZE221F3A3MALLFE HERSRERH
#8,011,000% 7£.(2020 : 8,308,000/ 5 ) + H A
7,789,000 7T.(2020 : 7,902,000 7T ) 4 78 & &P
515 77 $222,0005% 7T (2020 : 406,000 7T ) A7
BEDFIK -
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8 Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(d)  The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the rental
deposits in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets were
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(e)  There are no variable lease payments contained in the leases.

(f) Extension options
Extension options are included in a number of property leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of

managing contracts. The majority of extension options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

9 Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

FERAEEE®)
MsE : (&)

(d) AEEZHEEEHREABTRX

AEEHREZEYE - HEANBEIEETE
HEFEE10F - BERFIRENELERTE - 2
ERETRGER RGN - BEBHZLEE NG
HBEAFEEEEZBHEZS LI EFR
o MERETH AEEERMNZERR -

@ BISAETRAEMTREEMHR -

0 EmmEE
AREYSEDRAE R EMREE - KE
ERRREEIRA 65 EEARE IR

BEEE RZBABEZENRERETH
AEE M IEER B EATITE

BAFVETTAH M2 E WS I
BE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F4) 4,063 3,979
Fair value gains transferred to OCI (Note 19) EREHMEENE 2 A FENE

(Kiz£19) 145 84

End of the year FR 4,208 4,063

At 31 March 2021, the Group's financial assets at FVOCI represented
investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds were based on
their current bid price in an active market provided by counterparties. The
financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in USD. None of these financial
assets was either past due or impaired.

2021563 A318 - AEBEZRAFEGT AEM
2EREABEERRERS - ZEREE
F 2 ANFEDRER S FIRERERERT
B2 EANEBME - BAFEFAHEMEE G
2B EEAFEITEME - Z WA E W& A
HARORE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B REK MR

10 Subsidiaries 10 B AT
(a) Principal subsidiaries (a) FEMELA
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 TRAEAARR2021FIANBZEEN
March 2021: BRra]:
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of Kind of legal Class of issued share
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital Interest held (iii)
HRALEY/ g4
£ 30 TRERKE  IEXE FEREEH B iR (if)
20 2020
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of electro- Ordinary shares HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
company acoustic products and accessories
hEERAT B EREAAT  REBRIREESEERREN EER S00000ET  100%  100%
Charter Media (Dongguan) (hina Wholly foreign-  Manufacturing of electro-acoustic products Ordinary shares K$190,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited () owned enterprise  and accessories
hA(RZ)ETERAA) R IHERL:  HEREERRENM EER 19000000057 100%  100%
Dongguan Full Rich Precision Metal China Wholly foreign-  Manufacturing and trading of precision Ordinary shares HK$ 11,000,000 100% 100%
Products Company Limited (i) owned enterprise  metal parts
RERRTDLHR R IHERL:  HERRERILLEN LR MO0000ET  100%  100%
BRAR)
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited (i) British Virgin Islands ~~ Limited liabilty ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares U5§3,000 100% 100%
company
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited (i)~ EBRZEE BRRfAR  RERR LRk 300ET 100%  100%
Fujikon Industrial Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Design, manufacturing, marketing and (lass A (non-voting) (i) HK$2,400,000 = -
company trading of electro-acoustic products and
accessories
EIEEFRRAT B RREARD Rt B REREEEEERREM KB (RS 240000057 - =
(lass B (voting) i) HKS600000  100% 100%
BE(ERZIE)i) 60000ET  100%  100%
Fujikon International Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares HK$3 100% 100%
company
E1REARARAT (3 RRARAT  RARR LR BET O 100% 100%
Fujikon Packing Material Company Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacturing and Ordinary shares HK$10,000 51% 51%
Limited company trading of packaging materials
EIRBRNHARAT Bk RRRfRE  REEBIRHEREREXNH Bk 100008 51% 51%
Fujikon Precision Metal Products Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacturing and Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%
Limited company trading of precision metal parts
EIRREICRRERAR 3 RREAAT  REARIRGEREERELERM LR 000 100%  100%
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Electrical China Wholly foreign-~ Dormant Ordinary shares HK$19,400,000 = 100%
Products Limited (iv) owned enterprise
ER(RR)ESRARRAAN hERtx:  EEERH EER 19,400,000 7C - 100k
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~Provision of management services Ordinary shares HKS2 100% 100%
company
THRRAA 3 RRRAAT  REEERE EER WL 100%  100%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE B RR MR

10 Subsidiaries (continued) 10 B AR (#)
(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEMBLARE)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of Kind of legal Class of issued share
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital Interest held (iii)
HRALLY/ BEfT
2 TELEnE TREEKE  IEXE FEROEH R PR (i)
0 2020
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Property holding Ordinary shares HK$100 100% 100%
company
URERAT ER BREART  NERE LAk 10037 100%  100%
Maxchief Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Dormant Ordinary shares HK§150 100% 100%
company
ERLRERAA B BREMRR  EEERR EER BOET  100% 100%
Profits (Dongguan) Electric Products ~ China Wholly foreign- ~ Dormant Ordinary shares HKS5,410,000 100% 100%
Company Limited avned enterprise
BE(RZ)RRERARLA e mEAL:  EEERK LR SAI0000ET  100%  100%
Audiom Technik Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Trading of electro-acoustic products and Ordinary shares HKS2 100% 100%
company accessories
BB HRARA Bk EREAAT  EESEEQREM 2R WL 100%  100%
Smart Success Management Limited ~ British Virgin Islands~~ Limited liability ~~ Investment holding Ordinary shares US§100 100% 100%
company
Smart Success Management Limited ~~ BERZEHS EREEAR  RARK 2R 05T 100%  100%
Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products  China Wholly foreign- ~ Manufacturing and trading of packaging Ordinary shares HK$34,000,000 51% 51%
Company Limited () owned enterprise  materials
REERBEERARAT) A IHERL:  HERREEXUM LR H0000ET 5% 5%
Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products China Wholly foreign-  Manufacturing and trading of packaging Ordinary shares RVB500,000 51% 51%
Company Limited () owned enterprise  materials
HEERRERARARI) el NEEER:  HEREERRIM EER ARESO00T  51% 51%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B REK MR

10 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich
Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Dong Guan Fortune Packing
Products Company Limited and Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products
Company Limited are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established
in China to be operated for 35 years up to May 2029, 17 years up to
October 2021, 25 years up to November 2024 and 20 years up to July
2034, respectively.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by the

Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the Company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

On 18 October 2018, the Board of directors approved deregistration
of Full-Sound (Dongguan) Electrical Products Limited (“FSE”), a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise established in China. The deregistration of
FSE has been completed on 20 August 2020.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

10 B AT (&)
(a) TEMBEAR(E)

G

(i)

(iii)

HE(Rx) BEFARAR - Rx=&EER
SRMBRAF ReERB YR ERA
ARSNEEBERRERAFIGARE
B2 INEBE R E  ZEREF/D AL
35 2029458 174 £20214105 - 25
FE20245F11 A K20F 52034578

Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited 2 f% {7 i 7
ARRHEERE - AMMBE AR ZRGY
WREERE -

AR(ERZR)ROFE AL ERERE -
IEREREIRR S - RIERARMAER
900,000,000,00078 7T, + B 75 82 b S &
B 2IE + BRFE900,000,000,00078 7T 2
BEEHAARDIRTBE(EIRERE) K
(GESZPND

MR2018F10718H ' E= S AEFHE
B(RR)ERRGERARTEZ] B
REIN ZINEBERE) - BER20206
8H20H FEpk E R FE N ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 BB (&)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (b) EARFEZEHIEEL

As at 31 March 2021, the total non-controlling interests were
HK$62,704,000 (2020: HK$65,623,000), solely representing their
interests in Fujikon Packing Material Company Limited and its
subsidiaries, namely Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company
Limited and Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products Company Limited (the
"FPC Group").

Set out below are the summarised financial information for FPC
Group that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

MR2021F3A318 - EEFRIMEREER
62,704,0007% 7T (2020 : 65,623,000/ JC ) °
ERERRELTSBEMEAR AR REM
Bra IRZEEXRBEZMABRAFR
PNEEeREGERAT(TETaa%
VIR SR ) 2 R o

TR FEABAKEEANZ I HI1E#
BZEITRERUHEBEZMBEENT

Group. G
Summarised statement of financial position BMHERARBE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EmBEE 29,167 26,852
Current assets MENEE 146,973 151,166
Current liabilities mENA & (41,591) (43,179)
Non-current liabilities EmBARE (6,582) (915)
Net assets BEFE 127,967 133,924
Summarised income statement W RHmE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 239,522 347,044
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %5 A1 Vi 1) 26,509 57,500
Income tax expenses IS fiz it (5,856) (10,787)
Profit for the year F A5 A 20,653 46,713
Other comprehensive income H b 2w 3,390 (3,837)
Total comprehensive income FHEWERE 24,043 42,876
Total comprehensive income allocated to DR E I HI MR = A
non-controlling interests THWEARE 11,781 21,010
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests IR T3R5 I M i 2 A AR B 14,700 17,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B REK MR

10 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

10 B AT (&)

(b) EARFEHIEERE)

Summarised cash flows RenEmeE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net cash generated from operating activities & /EEFT1E 2R F5E 33,960 68,072
Net cash used in investing activities REEHFMAZES TR (2,070) (7,233)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEFSMACREFRE (35,737) (40,631)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BERBEEEWCRD),
equivalents EHNFEE (3,847) 20,208

Exchange differences on cash and cash RekReEEMELEZR
equivalents 1,405 (721)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FURERBESEEY
the year 63,000 43,513
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F4RIFAE RIRESZEY 60,558 63,000
11 Inventories 1 78

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials R K 64,432 61,070
Work-in-progress T2 M 43,840 54,934
Finished goods LUK M@ 32,818 56,578
141,090 172,582

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of sales
amounted to approximately HK$723,367,000 (2020: HK$991,557,000). For
the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has a net reversal of provision
for inventory obsolescence of approximately HK$5,583,000 (2020: net
provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately HK$16,250,000).

HRABIHRFAHERAZTFEXEAN A
723,367,000/ (2020 : 991,557,000 7T ) °
HE201F383MBLEE  AEBEREF
[B] # #75,583,0007% JL(2020 : R & % & & 4
16,250,00075 7T ) °
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12 Trade and other receivables 12

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 30 to 120
days. The amount of the provision was HK$2,207,000 as of 31 March
2021 (2020: HK$7,399,000).

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as

RE VBRI

FE W & = E At FE WK R IR

AEBLETFTEPIZIWEZEEH - BHE
2021438318 © # & & %8 £2,207,000/ JT
(2020 : 7,399,000/ 7T) °

AR EZBRERZRESTOT

follows:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current = HA 113,389 126,793
1 to 30 days 1230H 8,869 27,977
31 to 60 days 31260H 5,274 12,477
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,260 1,697
Over 90 days 90H M E 2,115 6,731
131,907 175,675

Less: Loss allowance for trade receivables B BUNE R BT R (2,207) (7,399)
Trade receivables — net B ER—F5 129,700 168,276
Other receivables Ho b fE IR 23,028 30,021
152,728 198,297

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Note 3.1(b) sets out the details about the calculation of the
allowance.

74 52 0 U R R S PR OB 2 R S
ATERE -

AEBEEBEEM B RELENEIRBILTE
AEMARKERCAREERE  EEAE
HITR B B RE - ARG EFBENM
73.1(b) ©
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued) 12

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

ALY R A ERELE )

7N £2 B 1 S R e Lt B W R TR A AR R T B DA
THEHSIE -

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

HKD BT 5,071 9,774
RMB AR 28,281 28,658
usb = 119,372 159,865
Others Hit 4 -
152,728 198,297

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables reconciles to the opening
loss allowance as follows:

S 3 4 A S A R A S R R A 2 18R
mT

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F1) 7,399 2,375
(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment R ERZBE(RE),/

of trade receivables B (5,193) 5,067

Receivables written off as uncollectible ANAT UG 1B 2 AR T i 8 = (43)

Exchange difference MEHZ5 -

End of the year FR 2,207 7,399

As at 31 March 2021, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 78.6% (2020: 86.2%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in
Note 3.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, other receivables are not considered
impaired and have no relevant history of default.

M2021F3 8318 REAARARFZEKWRER
4916 4B FE U 5 5178.6% (2020 : 86.2%) ° AEEE
HIEERAKR 2 EE N HAMEIRE -

M20214F }20204F3 A31H » E b W FRIA Y
AWARRRIE - IEARRERIE TGS
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13 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 RAFEF ABENHBEEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity securities and investment fund ITTREZHFREEES 1,423 1,448
The fair value of all equity securities and investment fund at fair value RAFEIENEIREESFREERES A
is based on their current bid prices in an active market. Financial assets FEDBRBEEERMBSRITCEREET °
at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following RAFTEFTABENMBEEEN TS EET
currencies: iR :
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 963 911
RMB AR 460 537
1,423 1,448
14 Cash and cash equivalents 14 RERBEEEY
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRIRE® 219,766 320,793
Short-term bank deposits R ERERITIF 3K 267,584 100,975
487,350 421,768
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately RHRTEFEREREMNEXLNRETF2.0E (2020 :
2.0% (2020: 2.4%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity 242) - ZEFRTFHEEE &26H (2020 : 20
of 26 days (2020: 20 days). H) e
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: ReRBESEEWATINEEIIEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 23,983 21,951
RMB AR 284,658 152,046
usb 7T 176,163 244,088
Others HAh 2,546 3,683
487,350 421,768
At 31 March 2021, approximately HK$16,743,000 (2020: HK$64,468,000) 202163 A318 + A & B %916,743,0007%8 T
of the Group's cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in China (2020 : 64,468,0007% 7T ) 17 B AR B 3% A 3R 1T
were denominated in RMB, and were subject to foreign exchange control ZEeRBESEEMUARBIE WX
regulations of China. HNEEE HEFRFTPR & o
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15 Trade payables, contract liabilities, accruals and 15 BEREXK - AN EE - B EBEAR

other payables H {th P& {3 TR 1B
As at 31 March 2021, the ageing analysis of the trade payables by past R2021563A318 A BB B ECENE
due date is as follows: R R AITAT -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current = A 86,230 89,730
1 to 30 days 1£230H 7,265 14,653
31 to 60 days 31260H 238 1,240
61 to 90 days 61290H 31 952
Over 90 days 90H M E 1,044 2,234
Trade payables FERTER 94,808 108,809
Accruals and other payables JEET B A R E MR FRIE 82,450 100,748
Contract liabilities aRAaE 2,517 5,681
179,775 215,238
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables INER B 7 B R B E A A Rk IE 2 BRI B B
approximate their fair values. HRAFEMEE -
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance ST A KB E 2 F Y4 #:4,808,0007%5 7L E HER
at the beginning of the year amounted to HK$4,808,000. WA o
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables, contract liabilities, AEBZEMNER  6aHEE - BEAEARE
accruals and other payables balances are denominated in the following fth P& A< FRIB 45 84 2 ARTEI B LA TS5 EHE 51 BR
currencies:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 17,034 12,241
RMB AR 141,487 159,921
usb Ev 18,134 39,146
Others Hth 3,120 3,930
179,775 215,238

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 1 38 Annual Report 2020/2021



16 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under the
liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by
the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

=)

16 BEFEHREERER

BEEMGHREAABEER TR ZRRYBEARR
ROPEREMKBERMZHEE

BEMEHREER B BAEAMBANIRE EEANH
BIRBEA GIER SR BIFTT AN LR MR

liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal B ER—RKE AR - 50 EiE
authority. HiH -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFTISTI & EE -
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after A E 1218 A 18 U= /9
more than 12 months EERIRE = 7,684 8,543
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFTISTAE ¢
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after AR E 1218 A 18 Y2 /Y
more than 12 months RIEFRIBEE (891) (1,825)
6,793 6,718
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: FREFTISTARE 2B EFEAT ¢
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April »4/18 6,718 4,460
Deferred income tax (charged)/credited to REEAEEERERFT (X)),
consolidated statement of comprehensive T AZIEEFTS T (f5E24)
income (Note 24) (584) 2,747
Exchange differences MEHZ5 659 (489)
At 31 March #38318 6,793 6,718
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16 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the
year are as follows:

16 EEZEFESHEEREBE@

FREREMSHEERAE(ER &KL
tER 2 AR IR IHAT) < BT

Deferred income tax assets Tax losses Provisions and others Total
EEMBHEE BIEEE BEREM Foy
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April »4R1H = - 8,543 6,644 8,543 6,644
(Charged)/credited to RS E2ERERFR
consolidated statement of (Z88)/FA
comprehensive income 927 - (1,629) 2,388 (702) 2,388
Exchange differences MEH =% - = 659 (489) 659 (489)
At 31 March M3A318 927 - 1,573 8,543 8,500 8,543
Accelerated tax Withholding tax on
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation Others unremitted earnings Total
EEMEHAR MEBBRE Hity RERBA 2 ENH Mt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April »4A1E (1,797) (1,795) (28) (28) = (361)  (1,825) (2,184)
Credited to consolidated ~ FA4RA ZEMERF
statement of A
comprehensive income 118 (2) - - - 361 118 359
At 31 March M3A31H (1,679) (1,797) (28) (28) = - (1,707) (1,825)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$2,250,000 (2020: HK$799,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$12,068,000 (2020: HK$4,842,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income with no expiry date.

As at 31 March 2021, deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on certain
amounts of unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that no material temporary differences will be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

140
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EIEFTIS T & E(E 2 72 7] 8215 1R R 2R A %L A
HERMBEHIENE ZEL T ERNIEBELS
a8 o REERERELFTEIEE /2,250,000
75 70(2020 : 799,0008 7L ) - BB E SRS
12,068,000/% 7T (2020 : 4,842,0007 T ) * % &5
BEEN TAE - DU AR R AT 8H e (3
EEmBE) -

M2021F3A318 - ASEWERE THEBE R
AlZ A TARERZN S EES 2 BIRERE
TG EaE  BARNSEGRE NEHIERE
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RE VBRI

17 Share capital 17 R
2021 2020
Number of Number of
shares shares
g 4= RHEE
‘000 HK$’'000 '000 HK$'000
Ordinary shares, issued BERITRAR
and fully paid: T
Beginning and end of the year FURFL 425,839 42,584 425,839 42,584
18 Share options 18 IEAR#E

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”). At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme. Under the share
option schemes, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

£ 20202021 141 =+tsEze

BAE AR QA R200248A211H BB 2 LB R
BR AQRARNFTEABMIFTESR ETRA
(TEMRADE1IIERE 2 BRET2I([E5T
2 ]) - RAF 201298 A3E BT 2 IRR AL
AE L BRLERRRAENIBRAES
([#raT8 ) WAL IEEETE - BIREAERT S -
ANABAHARARKEEMAHBRRKAE
EEMkE QAR RBETMRE S EAEE (T
MEeEEREE(ZRIESE  RETAHBITE
=) EAERTES - ERIKRE - EAHE
BAERAERNRF  REANEBEZEEELERZ
EfE A TR EREARB AR RRG -
WEFT I R0 TS BIB AR R 2 BT
NTEE Z30% °

RBESHEATESERT  LHTER
TREZBEE

(a) BMRENEBEBRME B RERMT
ZWTE
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REPHRKRMEE

18 Share options (Continued) 18 BR#E &)
Movements of share options under the Old Scheme during the year were FRNEFEBE N 2ERESHNT -
as follow:
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Subscription Exercised  cancelled Exercised  cancelled
Exercise price per At  during the during the At  during the  during the At
Date of grant period share  01/04/2019 year year 31/03/2020 year year 31/03/2021
R R2019% FRER/  R2020%F FRER/ R20211F
REBAH TEH RBE 4818 ERTE e 3A31A ERTE i 3A31A
HK$ ‘000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
28/03/2012 28/03/2013 - 1.1 4,002 - - 4,002 - 232 3,770
27/03/2022 (i)
28/03/2014 - 1.1 4,000 - - 4,000 - - 4,000
27/03/2022 (if)
28/03/2015 - 1.1 1,462 - 54 1,408 - 336 1,072
27/03/2022 (iii)
9,464 = 54 9,410 = 568 8,842
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18 Share options (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of
grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of
grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of three years from the date of
grant.

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 AR

=) ,\jﬁft&& %E Bﬁ uf

AR RE ()

GERE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ZEBREA
171 -

BEELBHEFZ—FREBEY

ZEEBREA
171 -

BEELBHEFZMERBES
ZEBREAZRLAMEF 2 =FEEH
1 -

AARBRMDNERBRER LS B A ER AR

BIERIIL 2 W ENT

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)

Date of grant Egee=R: KERNE B 2R EET)
28 March 2012 2012463828 H 1.1

At 31 March 2021, outstanding options of 8,842,000 were exercisable (2020: (v) 7202143 A31H - 8,842,000 (2020 : 9,410,000) 1%

9,410,000). RITERERAE R T174E -

The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the fair value of (i) ARQRRA-_BEAEXNTEAREBEREZA

the share options granted. According to the Binomial Model, the fair value EE - BiE-ERERX - REE201263831H

of the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2012 measured as at IEFEEH %%%Z@i1§(}§2012¢3ﬁ285

the date of grant of 28 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.273, HK$0.288 BB HE) D RIA A EAR0.273%8 T - 0.288

and HK$0.294 per share, respectively, taking into account various factors, P IC%0.294% 7T EEEEf&ﬂIEI% PR

variables and assumptions which include the following: BiE:

(i) exercise multiple was applied to the historical information of the (i) BERESFEANBEEHERTEE
option holders, on average, would exercise their options when the 2 BERESAE AFTHRIREBESTE
stock price is 160% of the exercise price; 182 160%FF 1T REARAE

(i) the risk-free interest rate used was 1.27%; (i) FAEFTE 2 ERBRFE A1, 27F

(iii)  the expected volatility was about 43%; and (iii) FBEARR(ER B X4 /543% ;

(iv)  the expected annual dividend yield of 5.73%. (iv) FERTEFRE WK A5.73% °

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously R EER A RHD B RAIZEZ 2R ETIRIE

compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share BETFEAREZSFFAAITEL -

prices over the last ten years.

As at 31 March 2021, no share options were granted under the New 20213 A31H - I EB R 8 B R
T o

Scheme.
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19 Other reserves

19 Hftf#k

Property Capital ~ Statutory Share
Share  revaluation reserve reserve  Investment option  Exchange
premium reserve (i) (ii) reserve reserve reserve Total
nE  ERfE  LERE R E
RiVRE EfiRE (i) (i) RERE fE  ENRE @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2019 R2019%4A18 119,642 1,041 1,607 4190 89 2,678 42,524 1m,m
Currency translation differences EHER - - - - - - (22,107) (22,107)
Fair value gains on financial assets N RPN
at VoCl FERENHTH
BEZOTENE - - - - 8 - = 8
Employee share option scheme: EERREE
— Lapse of share options -BRELN - - - - - (16) - (16)
Appropriation of statutory reserve BRTETRERE - - - 1,548 - - - 1,548
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3831A 119,642 1,041 1,607 5,738 173 2,662 20,47 151,280
Currency translation differences EREE = - - - - - 25,919 25,919
Fair value gains on financial assets BATE AL
at ol SERENE
BECATENS = - - - 145 - - 145
Release of reserves upon deregistration of a ~ SFEEMIB A AEFTER 2
subsidiary s - - - (3,564) - - (4,207) (11m)
Employee share option scheme: BB BRET 2 -
- Lapse of share options —BIRER R - - = = = (166) = (166)
At 31 March 2021 ®202153A31A 119,642 1,041 1,607 2,174 318 2,49 42,129 169,407
Notes: Bt -
(i)  Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of (i) BXRBEERRARMETLRR AERRBER
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of 2000F3 A AN B EAAETRRMUEE 2 B A
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an AR A B AR 0 R B AT 2 =58 o
exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's reorganisation in March 2000.
(i)  Statutory reserve represents general reserve fund required to be set up (i) FEEREBEEABRBFEEZZATNEENFEZ

pursuant to the laws of China for the Group’s subsidiaries in China. The
general reserve fund can only be used to make up for losses incurred,
increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of employees.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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GRE B RR MR

20 Revenue 20 KA
The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacturing, marketing AEBTENERF Wi HERHESE
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic Em EHEREMCEFERRBENE - FK
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year are BRZBALT :
as follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of merchandise BEmiHE 877,865 1,243,222
Handling income FRIBURA 12,761 6,752
Management fees IR 163 168
Rental income Al A 31 31
890,820 1,250,173
21 Other (losses)/gains — net 21 Hib(&E) - FE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fair value losses on financial assets at FVPL BRATEGAEBRNABEEZ
NT{EEE (24) (661)
Fair value gains on investment property (Note 7) wEWME N AT - 100
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEME - BERZEZ
plant and equipment (E8) W F5E (212) 253
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains &5 (E518) a5 (20,159) 1,741
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary RN Pl & 4,207 -
(16,188) 1,433
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22 Operating profit 22 ®&ERF
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: ESEFBIER(GTA) TFI&IE -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Auditor's remuneration ZERB & 1,665 1,595
Cost of inventories (Note) FERA (M) 723,367 991,557
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BENMREZINE 32,167 34,271
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 8,298 8,572
Expenses relating to short-term leases and low value Tt ATAEGEHNEHHE LK
lease payments not included in lease liabilities BEAENFER X 89 16
(Reversal of provision)/provision for inventory RE(BR),
obsolescence (5,583) 16,250
Reversal of provision for legal costs EEEREELE = 2.171)
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) EETH(BREEZ=MS)
(Note 27) (PR5F27) 269,572 361,667
Note: Costs of inventories included but not limited to costs of materials, Mix: GEXNABIEEIRRAREKA . 288
subcontracting charges, certain staff costs and manufacturing overheads. A -ETEEXXHREEER -
23 Finance income — net 23 MEWA-—FHE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income from FIBURAZR B
— financial assets at FVOCI —RATEFAREMEE
Wes H) A 75 & B 259 257
— bank deposits —RITIFR 3,312 4,928
_Financeincome  @AEMA ] 35711 . 5185
Interest expense on FESZH
— bank borrowings —RITEE = (34)
— lease liabilities —MHEAE (222) (406)
— others — HAh, (12) (25)
Financecosts _ ®m&E&Ax (234 (465)
3,337 4,720
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24 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March 2035.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. The Group’s subsidiaries in China are subject to
China Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on estimated
assessable profits.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are
payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

24 BB H

AARRHAREREEE2035F3 AL

ERFNESHBBORBEARESEEIRE
BB 2 (AT FER B G F 2A16.5% (2020 : 16.5%)
REAE - REERFHRZHEBE AR ERGR
i AR 5 0% I LA25% (2020 : 25% ) B R 8135 b [
EMBH -

RIEFFLE - AR IMNEEESIRRERF E
PRI 2 SN 1R B 1 R AR B EUIR10%TE N EL -
R T B20084F1 A1 8 A A I # A 720074
NRANBEAEAZATF - 4 BEERINGE
EFMBR R ZEEBTBEREL - BIF
RREBINREER - At - KB ERZE
FHR B AR 7 2 B BB R Rl 5£20084F1 A1 A B E £
ZBRMDIR/ 1T 2R EEBRIBEINF -

e 2 ERER AR TR SRR

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

Current income tax B RS
— Current tax on profits for the year —F RN 2 E A IE 8,284 19,388
— Under-provision in prior years —FFETERE 3,792 17
— Withholding tax on dividends — R EFEMH - 1,389
12,076 20,794
Deferred income tax charge/(credit) (Note 16) RIEFTEB T (%) (KMizE16) 584 (2,747)
12,660 18,047
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24 Income tax expenses (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

24 FRBM T (4)

AREB B TS B ATE M 2 TR BB AR R T E
B REFE 2 BREFE2ERNET -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit before income tax B PRS2 A& A 33,046 69,928
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 127 %16.5% (2020 : 16.5%)

(2020: 16.5%) tE 5,452 11,538
Effect of different taxation rates in China RABRTRMRE & 1,237 82
Income not subject to taxation AR 2 KA (2,304) (942)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose AL gh AR T HBR 2 32 1 3,395 7,956
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses EREFERERZ MBER = (1)
Tax losses not recognised RERBZ RIBSEE 1,470 147
Under-provision in prior years TET R 3,792 17
Withholding tax on dividends RS FEE = 1,028
Others HAth (382) (1.778)

12,660 18,047
25 Dividends 25 RE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK2.0 cents B AR B AR AR

(2020: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share 2.0711(2020 : 2.07&1L) 8,517 8,517
Proposed final dividend of HK3.0 cents ERABRS R ER

(2020: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share 3.0/8111(2020 : 3.0/ 1L) 12,775 12,775

21,292 21,292

MR2021F6 ANBRITzE2% L EFg@EE
IR AT R EARR BB AR X B AR3.075 L - AEA
12,775,000 7T - EZERE T EZSHREY
BREPFIERMRE » 5 RN E 22022
FIANBIULFEZREBEMN DL ©

At a meeting held on 22 June 2021, the Board of Directors recommended
a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total
of HK$12,775,000. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, and will be reflected
as appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2022.
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26 Earnings per share
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

=)

26 BREAF
2

BRERBNTIAGB AR BREFAAZE
FBRAFAND BT EBRRZ NETIHEEE -

2021 2020
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 57 BANA A JHERE G A
(HK$'000) 2 (FATT) 10,266 28,991
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in EEITEERZ
issue (in thousands) ik E(FRR) 425,839 425,839
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRRERZEF CEL) 2.4 6.8

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options,
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, no adjustment has been made to the
weighted average number of shares as the exercise of the Company’s
share options would have an anti-dilutive effect.

s

BREERNDBBRAERTHEING AR ZMN
R BIRBREA B E L B E B AG
B ARuE—RECEHEEBER  HEBK
B - LB T - TUARIE W ORTT R B AT
MREE 2 EREEETHENEETEAF
B(BEEASARARBRN < FEOEFME)RELZ
IR EE - EXFIEZERM B BRKRERE
TR BT ZRMBBEEE

HE201F3A31BIEFE  ARTTFEARR A
ZEREAREBEYE  FALHHRMDZ M
EFEHEELFHE -

2021 2020

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 57/ AR GIfEHER A A

(HK$'000) 2 (FATT) 10,266 28,991
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BEITEER 2 NETFHE(FR)

issue (in thousands) 425,839 425,839
Adjustment for potential dilutive effect in respect of i ARITFERE 2 BEETTE

outstanding share options (in thousands) {EH 2 AR (FRR) = 373
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for STEBREERN 2 SRR ME

diluted earnings per share (in thousands) Fg(FR) 425,839 426,212
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRREE R CBIL) 2.4 6.8
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27 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

27 BEEXH(BREESHE)

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERF® 238,638 310,295

Other staff benefits HEMmETEF 18,865 18,422
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BARES T H — EREHEREE

(Note 31) (Ff$3E31) 12,069 32,950

269,572 361,667

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2020: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 28. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2020: two) individuals
during the year are as follows.

(a) EBREFAL

FAANEERERSFALTBEE=S
(2020: =R)ESE FEZMESE R
28PN Z DT R - FAREN B THA
(2020 : MB)ALZBHS AT -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERFS 12,861 5,075
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RINE T H — EREEREE

(Note 31) (PREE31) 30 21

12,891 5,096

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individuals fell within the
following bands:

BRATZMENTRTHNEEA

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
Emolument bands i < &6 &
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,00178 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,000/ 7T 1
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28 Benefits and interests of directors

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE B RR MR

28 EEEFRER

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Salary,
allowances Pension costs
and benefits  Discretionary and share
Name of Directors Fees in kind bonuses options Total
Fi 11 BAEYH
E=ng we REWEAN BEEL RiERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended 31 March 2021  #Z2021F3A31H
LEE
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny B L
(Chief Executive Officer) (fTBBH) - 2,465 194 3 2,662
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R4 = 2,396 194 3 2,593
Chow Man Yan, Michael BAx{ - 2,396 194 3 2,593
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R - 1,676 100 21 1,797
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BoE - 1,879 100 21 2,000
Chow Lai Fung EER - 1,676 100 2 1,797
Independent non-executive Directors BUFNTES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy & F 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen BigE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun R 250 - - - 250
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z2020F3A31H
LEE
Executive Directors HITESR
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny BEE
(Chief Executive Officer) (THER) - 2,465 - 3 2,468
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 48 - 2,39 - 3 2,399
Chow Man Yan, Michael AXE - 2,39 - 3 2,399
Yuen Chi King, Wyman T - 1,676 - 21 1,697
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BB - 1,879 - 21 1,900
Chow Lai Fung BB - 1,676 - 21 1,697
Independent non-executive Directors BUEMTES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEY 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen HiFE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun FEW 250 - - - 250
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28 Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

(i) No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the current and prior years. There was no
arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the current and prior years.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2020: Nil).

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

28 EEEFNRERZ)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME )
P i

i) HMEMALTREZSOH(THR/EARK
HIE AR PR AR B 15 ok FE AT 9 B

(i) AEEREMRBEFERENEERES
NS - AERBRSIIMAS AR K E
Rz EZBXAMBMAEZHE - RE
AIRBEFEMEETNRELARENE
R EZ 25 -

ESEREANRRLERER

FA - HEERE WSS EEBUEER
@Ak IR AR (2020 ¢ ) ©

RREHESREAF=FRH2KE

HE20ME3A31BILFE » AR A E
REEEERERTAE=ZASINRE
(2020 : £) o

FEUES  EXEFZEREESR
BAZRAZER EERREMX
Z2EH

BEEHIAES  HERT
ERRZBAZER £

ZHE(2020 : ) o

FEHDEE N BiE
EREEMZ S

EERNRG  ZHAEHNHZERK
i

RERRFREAER  TEFEAKE
EBMARBMEREF - AARRES
REP(TRBERERER) BEEEAER L
BEARS - REHERAHI(2020 : &) o
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29 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 29 HZEHREHRERKEE

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated () AEEBNHEKEERAB2REZ
from operations: HER -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year INF A 20,386 51,881
Adjustments for: MATEIREL AR
— Depreciation of property, plant and —M%E BEERBZITE
equipment 32,167 34,271
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(ERREEZITE 8,298 8,572
— Finance income — net —RE WA —FE (3,337) (4,720)
- Income tax expenses —FEHi 12,660 18,047
— Fair value losses on financial assets at — R A THET ABRH M
FVPL BEZNTEESE 24 661
— Fair value gains on investment property —REYERNTE 2 WS - (100)
— Net losses/(gains) on disposal of property, — — HEWE - BiE N R E
plant and equipment ZEE (W) #88 212 (253)
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for —RE(E#) &
inventory obsolescence (5,583) 16,250
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for — W EFRE(ERE), B
impairment of trade receivables (5,193) 5,067
— Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — FEIHR B A Bl Yas (4,207) =
— Exchange differences —[ERERE (1,019) (4,328)
54,408 125,348
Changes in working capital: EBESEY
— Inventories 78 50,542 106,669
— Trade receivables —EE R 44,652 83,644
— Other receivables — H b pE W RIE 9,786 6,894
— Trade payables —EER (14,849) (56,149)
— Contract liabilities, accruals and other —EHaE  EFERAK
payables R AN (27,283) (14,925)
Cash generated from operations REEBRSZHE 117,256 251,481
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29 EBEERERMT &)

29 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows
(Continued)

(b) MEFBFEEBEHRNT :

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities is as follows:

Dividend Bank Lease
payable  borrowings liabilities Total
EMRE RITEE HEAaE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2019 7A2019F4A1H - = = =
Adjustment on adoption of ERANE BB T s 4R
HKFRS 16 165 2 - - 19,617 19,617
Cash flows: RERE :
— Drawdown on borrowings —REEE - 10,000 - 10,000
— Repayment on borrowings —BEEE = (10,000) - (10,000)
— Repayment on principal —EREEERZ
element of lease liabilities VNG a) - - (7,902) (7,902)
— Repayment on interest element  —EEHREEEZ
of lease liabilities FEZ 5 - = (406) (406)
— Dividends paid —BEKRE (46,959) - - (46,959)
Other non-cash movements: HMIERES L)
— Additions of right-of-use assets ~ —{f A1 & E3E N - - 61 61
— Finance costs — B ISR AR - - 406 406
— Dividends declared —B2EIRKRE 46,959 - - 46,959
— Exchange differences —[ERERE - - (956) (956)
At 31 March 2020 2020638318 - — 10,820 10,820
Cash flows: ReneE
— Repayment on principal —EEfHEaRE2
element of lease liabilities PG ) - - (7,789) (7,789)
— Repayment on interest element —(EEHEBEZ
of lease liabilities MEF - = (222) (222)
— Dividends paid —BEfRE (35,992) - - (35,992)
Other non-cash movements: HihIER ¢ &
— Additions of right-of-use assets ~ —{&2 Fi# & EE 15 N - - 9,752 9,752
— Finance costs — B PKAN = = 222 222
— Dividends declared —B2EIRKRE 35,992 - - 35,992
— Exchange differences —EHER - - 905 905
At 31 March 2021 202193 H31H = = 13,688 13,688

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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30 Commitments 30 &g
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAEIE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital REEZERBEREFTOERALNT ¢

commitments:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Acquisition of machinery and equipment BERW RS 5,847 2,173
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (b) FRAIZHZKEHE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RWEHR - REERTAIFH B R
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable short-term REBEHREMARERREEREMNKR
and low value leases with fixed rent only which fall due as follows: RETEHE:) ZEHBERNT
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
Not later than one year THB1F 79 78
Later than one year and not later than five — BiE15F B R BBSE
years 57 85
136 163
31 Pension obligations 31 BEREEME
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the AEBETHEARELEA—ZBEIETAE
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined Bz rREEFENEABEE(BELET
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of g HevBEERASEEMEESRF
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed by A UTHBVEEESKREERE - RERES
independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of FTE AEERHESHARIMERERE
the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme BIFTER 2 BB H € 25%F AR 8l 1EH 4
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory e MR MERERGOIAATE  BEERE
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’ Stz ERHE RS A1,5008 T (HEE) - 75
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month, as appropriate, A] B FEREIMERR -
as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.
As stipulated by the rules and regulations in China, the Group contributes BEREDEERERAE  AEBRETEE
to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in China. The SMBERE BN EEHHK - BEEAK
employees contribute up to 8% of their basic salaries, while the Group ZIREERT & 28 EH MR - MASEAIA
contributes to retirement plans approximately at 13% to 16% of the MRAGEELEEPBRESERFTSA13%E
basic salaries of its employees in China, and has no further obligations 16% .2 #3538 - B A 5t H 18 R IK € sl R K 4R F
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The 2 BRI NEL EEE - RIKEE ZER
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension R SR R R & B 2 BRIREH8I&IE -

obligations payable to retired employees.
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32 Related party transactions

The Company’s directors consider there is no ultimate holding company

as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

(a) The following significant transactions were carried out

(b)

with related parties:

32 BEALTRS

EREIER AT

72021F 202053 A318 » AR A EEZR AL

(a) AEBMEEBEALTZEARZUT

Name of related party/nature of transaction BEALTZER TZMHE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products St EAR R EN RS AR R
Limited (i) AR AFE()
— Sales of merchandise to the Group —MASEEEED = 77
— Management fees paid/payable to the Group -B/ENAEE
ZEBEM 7 12
— Handling fees paid/payable to the Group -B/ENAEEZ
BRIEE 12 12
First Success Technology Limited (i) tHERERAR A F)
— Lease payment paid/payable by the Group —REEE SRR
ZHEERK 1,133 1,133
— Management fees paid/payable to the Group B/ EMAEE
ZERER 156 156
Note: ks
(i) Both companies are wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. () ZMERARLEARANEFHERESL
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of the £ RMAELCERBAXCEELZEHRS °

Company.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the above related party
transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of
the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the

respective parties.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company's executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed

in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

TEZMAGRFAETT »

(b) TEEEASHMH
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33 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 33 AXAREEEBRREHEHESTH

Company
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) XRREEAEBER
As at 31 March
M3H31A8
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets FREBEE
___Investments in subsidiaries = WHEBARZEE Lz 142,468
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b fE W A 275 2,593
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B /BB 2 B FRIE 186,130 189,038
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 907 656
Current income tax recoverable AU B & HAFR 15 A 280 186
Total currentassets  ‘wBAE®E TLEr - 192,473
Current liabilities nBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B R & B fth FE 5 FRIA 2,561 4,305
_Netcurrentassets  __ #*EREFE 185031 188,168
Net assets EEZRE 327,212 330,636
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to the SFEAATRERZTEAZ
Company's equity holders B AR {4
Share capital &N 42,584 42,584
Other reserves H i 260,938 261,104
Retained earnings RE R 23,690 26,948
Total equity EREs 327,212 330,636
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AAREERBBEREN202156H228
Directors on 22 June 2021 and was signed on its behalf. EXeHAENAUTESKEEE -
YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON
BEE TR T A
Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
S5 e
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33 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 33 XAREEEEBXREHEEESH »)
Company (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ADTRERE
Contributed
Share surplus Share option Retained

premium (i) reserve earnings Total

RHEE BHERG) BRERR RE T Fy

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 April 2019 201954811 119,642 138,800 2,678 35,131 296,251
Profit and total comprehensive FREMN R EE

income for the year Uit dsE - - - 21,610 21,610
Employee share option scheme: (B2 BEA%E: 2] -

— Lapse of share options — IR - = (16) 16 -
Dividends paid BERARE - = = (29,809) (29,809)
At 31 March 2020 12020538310 119,642 138,800 2,662 26,948 288,052
Profit and total comprehensive FRHMNEEE

income for the year WaBEe - - - 17,868 17,868
Employee share option scheme: (B S ERETE] :

~ Lapse of share options — BB = = (166) 166 -
Dividends paid BARE - - = (21,292) (21,292)
At 31 March 2021 M2021%F3A31H 119,642 138,800 2,496 23,690 284,628

Note: MiaE -

(i) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal () EBEHRK/EBEARAMMBETEERZEE
value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset ELAR #%20005F3 B AN SR B S AR ETTHR AR T
value of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant WHE—EE AR EEFEZERE -

to the Group's reorganisation in March 2000.
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